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Message from the Managing Director 

Dear Partners. 

If's a strange world where people who put In their 

hard-earned money on pure bel!ef and trust ore called 

investors and those who associate for profit are called 

Partners. 

Not here. 

We strongly believe that all those who have believed in us ore 

our partners. You believed In the potential and we delivered. 

Coming o long way In times of unparalleled changes we have not only increased our 

capabilities but also foraged Into different segments to cater various market requirements. 

Looking ahead we o re Investing heavily in developing the latest molecules In various 

therapeutic classes and Innovative formulations that improve efficacy of existing products. 

Geographically also we ore adding new countries and registering our brands to fuel the 

growth for the future. 

With almost 300- registrations In various countries coming through in the next two years we 

are prepared for the growth in revenue 

It is a tough journey however it Is a pleasurable one and I genuinely believe we have a lbng 

ever-changing destination that requires us to adapt and amplify ourselves for the better. 

With my warmest Regards, 

Fredun Medhoro 

Managing Director 
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NOTICE OF THE 

32nd ANNUAL 

GENERAL 

MEETING 

1------ Fredu:1 PhoJTT-oceu!fcals Jd llrnuoll1ooort 2U 18·2:.1 19 

• 

NOTICE OF 32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (the "32nd AGM") of the 

Members of FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, September 24, 
2019 at 09:00A.M. at Ramee Guest Line Hotel. Dadar Plot No. 3, Kohinoor Road. Dadar, 
Mumbai-400 01 4 to transact '11le following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1 . To receive. consider and adopt the Audited Financial statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended March 31. 2019 together with the reports of '11le Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon; 

2. To declare Dividend of 6.5% on the Equity Shares of '11le Company for the Financial Year 

ended March 31,2019. 

3. To appoint a Director In place of Mr. Nariman Medhora (DIN No.:0206035 7) who retires by 

rotation in terms of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible has offered 

himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To Ratify the remyneratjoo of the Cost Auditor: 

To consider and If thOugh fit, to pass, wrth or without modification(s), 1he following resolution as 

an Ordinary ResolUtion: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Secilon 148 of '11le Companies Act 2013 read wi'lt1 the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any sto1utory modification(s) or re­

enactment(s) thereof, for the lime being in force) remunerailon of Rs. 60.000/- [Rupees Sixty 

Thousand only) payable to M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates; Practising Cost Accountants (Firm 

Registration No. 00240). allotted by the Institute of Cost Accountants of India: appointed as 

the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 by the Board of Diredors of 

the Company, as recommended by the Audit Committee be and is hereby ratified." 

5 
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and Is hereoy authorized to do all such 

acts and taKe appropriate steps as may be neces-sary and proper to give effect to ·Jnis 

resoluiion." 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 1 0 , 2019 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 

26, Mono] Industrial Premises. 
G. D. Ambekar Marg. Wadala. 
Mumt:lai - 400 031 

NOTES: 

By Order of the Board 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Sd/­

Priyanka Chafurvedi 

Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer 

1 . A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 32ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINr A PROXY TO ATTEND ON A POLL, VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF I HERSELF. A 

PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES. IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, 

MUST BE DEPOSITED ATTHE REGISTERED OFF ICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS 

BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 05 of the Companies Act. 20 l 3 ["the Acf"), read with 

the applicable rules thereon, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the to tal Share 

Capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more ltlan ten percent 

of the total Share Capital of the Company carrying vofing rights may appoint a single 

person as proxy and such person cannot act as a proxy for any other person or 

shareholder. Proxies in order to be effective, should be deposited a! the Registered Office 
of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before the 

commencement of the Annual General Meeting. 

3. Every Member entitled to vote at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company can 

inspect the proxies lodged at the Company at any time during the business hours of the 

Company during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for the 

commencement of the Annual General Meeting and ending on the conclusion of the 
32nd AGM. However, a prior notice of not less than 3 (three) days in writing of the intentions 

to inspect the proxies lodged shall be required to be provided to the Company. Further, 

6 
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Corporate Members are required to send a Certified Copy of the Board Resolution, 

pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act 2013 authorizing their representatives to 

attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting. 

4. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015; the Register of Members of 

the Company will remain closed from September 18, 2019 to September 24, 2019; both 

days inclusive (Book Closure Dote) for the purpose of 32nd Annual General Meeting. 

5. Pursuant to tile provisions of Section 1 2 4(5) and Section 124(6) of the Act read with tile 

Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 

Rules, 2016 ("the IEPF Rules") and amendments thereto, all shares on which DiVIdend has 

not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to the 

demat occount oftile IEPF authority. 

The Company at its 3oth AGM held on September 28, 2017 and 31st AGM held on 

September 27. 2018; had declared dividend at the rate of 6%. The unclaimed I unpaid 

amount is lying in the account and we thus request the shareholders to contact the 

Company or Purva Sharegistry (Indio) Pvt Ltd. in this matter. The details ofitle unclaimed I 
unpaid dividend is available on the website of itle Company at www. fredunmoup.com 

6. Members, Proxies and Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to tne meeting, 

the Attendance Slip enclosed herewith. duly completed and signed, mentioning therein 

details of their DP ID and Client ID I Folio No. Entry at theAGM hall shall be strictly restricted 

to the Members I valid proX1es only carrying the attendance slip. 

7. The Members are requested to notify any change in their registered address I residential 

status immedlatelytofhe Registrar and Share Transfer Agents M/S. Purva Shareglstry (India) 

Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "Purva"), Unit No.9, Shiv Shakti lndl. Estate, J.R. Boricha 

Marg, Off N. M. Joshi Marg, Near Lodha Excelus. Lower Parel (E). Mumbai- 400 01l.ln case 

of Dematerialised Shares, the aforesaid Information should be given to the Depository 

Participantwith whom the member has an account. 

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to the 

Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding 

shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Registrar and Transfer Agent I 
Company. 

7 
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9, Members may note that the Rule 11 of tile Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.; permits 

clrcula'Hon of Annual Report to shareholders through electronic means to such of tile 

Members V>Aiose e-mail addresses are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders 

who have registered tllelr E-mail ID with the Company and physical copies to those 

shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been either registered with the Company or with 

the depositories. 

9. l Keeping In view the Green Initiative taken by the Govemment and to save the cost 

involved In prln'Hng and dispatch; Members are requested to register their e-mail 

addresses wltll the DPs, In case shares are held In dematerialized form and witll the 

Purva, in case tile shares are held In physical form and also intimate changes, if any, in 

tlleir registered e-mail addresses to the Company 1 DPs, from 'Hme to 'Hme. 

9.2 Please note that as a Member of the Company, you will alWays be entitled to receive 

all communications in Physical form, upon request. 

10. SEBI through it's circular doled December 3, 2018; had Instructed that securities of the 

Listed Companies can be transferred only In demoteliallsed form from April l,  2019. In 

view of the above and to avail various benefits of demater lallsolion, Members are 

advised to dematerialise shares held by them In physical form. 

I I  , Members holding shares in physical form under single name are advised to make 

nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, The Nomination Form SH-13 

prescribed by tile Government can be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent . 

12. In case of joint holders attending the Annual General MeeTing, only such Joint holder who Is 

higher In the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

13. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section l 02 of the Companies Act 2013 

In respect of the Item no. 4 of tile Notice is annexed herewith. 

14. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and tile Explanatory statement 

shall be open for lnspectlon at the Registered Office of the Company during normal 

business hours (I O:OOA.M. to 5:00P.M.) on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and 

Holidays, up to and Including the date of tile 32nd Annual General MeeTing of the 

Company. 

15. The Register of Directors· and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of tile Companies Act 2013: tile Register of Contracts or 

Arrangements In which the Directors are Interested under Section 1 89 of the Companies 

Act, 2013; will be available for Inspection at the 32ndAGM. 
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16. In compliance with the proVisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 and the 

Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the SEBI 

(L'Is1'1ng Obl'lgotions ord Disclosure R�uirements) Regulations. 2015: the Members are 

proVided with the facility to cost their vote electronically. through the e-voting services 

proVided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. All Shareholders holding 

Shores as on September 17. 2019 (end of the day) being thecut"off dote [i.e record dote 

for the purpose of Rule 20(2)(11) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2015) fixed for determining voting rights of Members will be enmled to participate in 

E"voting process. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below. Resolution(s) passed 

by Members through e-votlng Is I are deemed to have been passed as if they hove been 

passed at the 32nd Annual General Meeting. 

1 7, Members con opt for only one mode of voting. i.e. either by Ballot Form or e -voting. In 

case Members cast their votes through both the modes, voting done by e-voting shall 

prevail and votes cast through the Ballot form shall be treated as Invalid. Tlle Members 

who have cast their votes by remote E-votlng prior to the meeting can also attend the 

meeting but shall not be entitled to cost their votes. 

18. The Board vide its Resolution passed on June 10, 2019 hod appointed Mr. Rajendra R. 

Vaze, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 4247 CP NO. 1975) as the 

Scrutinizer for conducting the remote E-votlng and Ballot form process In accordance With 

the low and In a fair and transparent manner. 

19. The Chairperson shall, after the conclusion of the dlscussion(s) on the resolutions on which 

voting is to be held at the 32nd AGM. shall allow voting with the assistance of the 

scru1'1nizer. by use of ballot paper for all those Members who ore present at the 32ndAGM 

but have not cast their votes by availing the remote E"votlng facility. 

20. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 

lnsmute of Company Secretaries of Indio, details of Directors seeking re-appointment at 

the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 24, 2019 

are provided in Annexure A of this Notice. The Company had received the consents I 
declarations for their re-appointments as required under the Act and the rules framed 

thereunder. 

21 , Members may contact Ms. Prlyanko Chaturvedi, Company Secretary Cum Compliance 

Officer of the Company for any grievances connected with electronic means at the 

Registered office of the Company I.e. at 26. Manoj Industrial Premises G.D. Ambekar 

Marg, Wadala, Mumbai - 400 031. 

9 
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22, The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of tne voting at the 32nd Annual General 

Meeting, first count the votes cast at the mooting and then unblock the votes cast through 

remote e,votlng. In the presence of at least two witnesses not In the employment of the 

Company and shall make not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the 32nd Annual 

General Meeting as envisaged under Regulafton 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; a 

consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast In favour or against, if any, to the 

Chairperson of Company I Meeting In writing, who shall countersign the same and 

declare the results of the voting forthwith. The results declared With the Scrutinizer's report 

shall be placed on the website of the Company and will be forwarded to the BSE Limited. 

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under: 

Tlle Remote E-voting period begins on Saturday, September21, 2019 (9:00A.M. 1ST) and ends 

on Monday, September 23. 2019 (5:00 P.M. 1ST). During this period shareholders of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date (record date) i.e., September 1 7, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. The E-voting 

module shall be disabled by NSDL for votingthereafter. 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system co11Sisls of "Two Steps" which are 

mentioned below: 

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDLe-Voting system at https:f/www.evotinq.nsdl.com/ 

step 2 : Castyourvote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

.,._ Details on Step lis mentioned below: 

I. Visit the e-Votlng website of NSDL Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

httos:/!WWW.evoting.nsdl.com I either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

ii. Once the home page of e-Voting system Is launched, click on the Icon "Login" which Is 

available under 'Shareholders' section. 

iii. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Ve�flcallon 

Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered lor NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https:Ueservices.nsdl.com I with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-In to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 

Step 2 Le. Cast your vote electronically. 

w 
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IV. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Your User ID is: Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

For Members who hold shares 
8 Character DP IDfollowed by 8 Digit Clieni iD 

In demat account with NSDL. 
For example if your DP ID is IN300"** and Client ID is 
12****** tllenyouruser ID is IN300***12******. 

For Members who hold shares 
16 DlgltBeneflclaryiD 

In demat account wltll CDSL. 
For example If your Beneficiary ID is 12*********** 
tllen your useriD Is 12*********** 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
For Members holding shares with the Company, 
in Physical Form. For example If folio number Is 001 *** and EVEN 

is 101456 then user ID Is 101456001 *** 

v. Your password details are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and castyourvote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Vo1ing system lor the first time, you will need to retrieve tile 

'initial password' which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'Initial 

password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and the system W111 force you to 

change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your'initial password'? 

o If your email ID is registered in your demat account or wltll the company, your 

'initial password' is communicated to you on your emaii iD. Trace the email sent to 

you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open tile email and open the attachment i.e. a 

pdf file. Open the pdf file. The password to open the pdf file is your 8 digit client IDfor 

NSDL account last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 

held In physical form. The .pdf file containsyour'User ID' and your 'ini1ial password'. 

o If your emaiiiD is not registered, your'initlal password' is communicated to you on 

your postal address. 

vi, If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the " Initial password" or have forgotten 

your password: 
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a) Click on gforgot User Details/Password?" (II you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl. com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?" (II you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the JX!Ssword by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demo! account number/folio number, 

your PAN,your name and your registered address. 

vii. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on 

the checkbox. 

viii. Now, you will haveto clickon"Login"button. 

lx. Afteryouclickonthe "Login" button, HomeJXlgeol e-Voling will open . 

.,._ Details on Step 2 Is mentioned below: 

i. After successful login at step 1, you wm be able to seethe Home page of e-Voting, Click 

on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles. 

ii. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you wm be able to soo all the companies "EVEN" In 

which you ore holding shares and whose voting cycle Is In active status. 

iii. Select "EVEN" of Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited tor which you
' 
wish to castyourvote. 

iv: Now you are readyfore-Voting as the Voting JXlQe opens. 

v. On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the 

option ''YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES Implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 

Resolution. 

vi. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish toviewtheentire Resolution details. 

vii. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent. verily/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and also 

"Confirm" when prompted. 

viii, Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully " will be displayed. 

IX. Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution. you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 
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x. You can also toke the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

• Institutional shareholders [I.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution I Authority letter etc. 
with attested specimen signature of the duly autho�zed slgnatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs ralendra@yahoo.in with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.ln 

• It Is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Details/Password?"' or "Physical User 
Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting. nsdl.com to reset the password. 

• In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section ofwww evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1 800-222-990 or send a request 

atevotlnq@nsdl.co.in 

Other Instructions: 

1 , The e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 2 1 .  2019 (9:00A.M. lSD and 

ends on Monday, September 23. 2019 (5:00PM. 1ST). During this period, members of the 
ComjXlny, holding Shares either in physical form or In dematerialized form, as on 
September 1 7, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL tor voting thereatter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Shareholder, the Shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

2. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their Shares of the paid-up Equity 
Share Capital of the Company as on the cut-off date September 1 7, 20 19. 

3. Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze, Practicing COmpany Secretaries has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-votlng process in a fair and transparent manner. 

4. The Scrutinizer shalL within a period notexceeding1woworklng days from the conclusion 
of the e-voting period, unblock the votes In the presence of at least 1wo witnesses not in 
the employment of the Company and make a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the 
votes cast In favour or against, If any, torthw�h the Report to the Chairperson of the 
Company, 
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5. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on tile 

Company's website www.fredungroup.com Tlle Company shall simultaneously forward 

the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. The resolution shall 

be deemed to be passed on the date of the 32nd Annual General Meeting subJect to 
receipt of sufficient votes. 

6. In case of any quer ies, you may refer tile frequently asked Questions (FAQs) for and e, 

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the "downloads" Section of 

www.evotlng.com or write on email to helpdesk.evotlng@cdsllndla.com 

Exolanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act. 2013 

Item no. 4 

Tlle Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment 

and remuneration of M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the cost auditors of 

the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 

2019-20, at Rs. 60,000/- (RupeesSixtyThousond only) remuneration. 

In accordance with tile provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 read wltll the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014; the remuneration payable to tile Cost Auditors 

has to be ratified by tile shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for 

ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending 

2019-20. 

The Board recommends tile Ordinary Resolution for approval by the shareholders. 

None of tile Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their rela'Hves are, in any 

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu'Hon. 

Place: Mumbal 

Dale: June 10, 2019 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 

26, Manoj Industrial Premises, 

G.D. Ambekar Marg, Wadala, 

Mumbai-400 031 

By Order of the Board 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Sdi­
Priyanka Chaturvedl 

Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer 
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Annexure A 

(Pursuant to Reaulation 36f31 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirementsl 

Regulations. 2015 and Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings 

Details of Directors seeking AQRQj.ntment 1 Reappointment at the 32nd AGfvl of th� 

ComQ§I.IJY- to_be held on September 24. 2019 

1\Jorne 

Dote ot Birth 
Dale of Appointment 
QualificoHon I 
expertise In specific functional areas 

Brief Profile 

Directorship held In o1he; Companies 
Membership of comrntNoes across 
Companies 
Shores held os on 31i03t/2019 
Relationship Between tho Directors 

Mr. Narlman Medhoro 

05/'1 1{1937 
30/09!2015 

B.SC from Gu)arat UniVersity 
Ho has wide experience in Plant checking, fUvl. stor es, Inventory 
Control and Purchase Deportment 

Mr. N. B. Medhoro is one of ti1e Promoter Direct or of Fredun 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd .. till OctobGr 2014 after which he has as­

any forward 
sc from Gu­
ctton rvtoteri­
Neuvet a UK 

y Control De­

sumed the. post of a Mentor t·o guide the Comp 
with his ext�nstve experience. He completed his B. 
)oral University & joined Asbestos Magnesia and Fri 

ats [AMFM), a wholly owned subsidiary of TuU1er & 
based Company in '1958 as on Inspector In Qualll 
partment. In the year 1962 he joined M/s. Sarobha i Chemicals 

ny in the co­
nen1. During 
wide experi­
M. stores, In­
he was pro­

IJd., at Baroda a leading Pharmaceutical Compo 
pacify of a chemist In their Quality Control l)epartr 
hls !enure In Sarobhai Chemicals L td. he gained a 
ence in. various departments hke Plant c11ecking, R. 

ventory Control and Purch.ase Deportment In 197 3 
mated as en Export-Import lncharge. Thus, he has an immense 

s. �has also 
vnh importers 
nicals l1d. In 
ormoce.utlcat 

knowledge about the Pharma lflduslry. Besides !hi. 
helped him In developing lhe necessary contpcts " 
In Aston & African countries. He left Sarabhai Cher 
1988 to start his own concern to manufacture Pll 
Forrnulalions. 

He also star1ed a Proprietary Company M/s. Fredn a Enterprises 
ng of a spe­

npoundused 
ed Industrial 
product. 

in 1990. Thts.concern is Involved in the rnonufacturi 
ctally product Mtcro-Crystoliine Hydroxyapoffte Cor 
as on organic calcium supplement It 110S· ocqutr 
galas 1 Plots in Potghor for the manufacturing of this 

NILL 
NILL 

5,75,300 Equity shores 
Mr. Narim<;m Medt1oro is husband of 
Dr. (Mrs.) Ooula1 Medhora and father of Mr. Fredun rvtedhora 
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Dear Members, 

Your Direc1·ors are pleased to present their report and financial statements for th.e year ended 

March 31,2019. 

1 • Financial Results: 

(Rs. In lal<hs) 

-
-

For the financial l'or the flnanclal 
Particulars yea� ended year ended 

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Income from Business Opera1ions 9,540.70 5,806.73 

Olher Income 199.6 0 164.35 

Total Income 9,740.30 5,971.08 
Prom /Loss before Interest. Depreciation and Taxes 1.058.8 586.42 

Flhance Cost 309.62 193.75 

DepreciaMon 1 Amortization 133.00 128.50 

Profit /Loss Before tax I 616.18 264.17 
Exceptional Income 1 Expenses 1 00 00 
Prior Pertod aojus1ments 00 00 
Profit I Loss betore Tax 616.18 264.17 

Income Tax 170.18 89.08 
Profit 1 Loss after Tax 446.00 175.09 

2. Financial Performance: 

Your Company earned a total income of Rs. 9740.30 lakhs compared to the income of 

Rs. 5, 971 . b.B lakhs for the previous year and the net profit of Rs. 446 lakhs compared to the net 
profit of Rs 1 7 5.09 lakhs for the previous year i.e., there was 63 % hike in the total income of the 

Company. 

The turnover of the Company has increased manifold due to the right strategy adopted by 

the Directors since last 3 years. Emphasis was put on i'ncreasing the infrastructure of the 
manufacturing unit a1 Palghar and installing high speed automatic machines for both 

production and packing departments. This helped the Company in  strengthening the core 

operations and managing the overall cost structure, A very important aspect of regulatory 

compliance was indirectly met wi1·h, due to the ilistallation of the latest machines having 

computerized data assurance and transparency in the manufacturing processes. Thus by 

16 
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upgrading the manufacturing unit as per tl1e latest regulatory framework, your Company 

expects new drug approvals at a much foster pace in the countries we already export to and 

also in o·lher countries where health is considered a priority and wl1ere a subst·antlal amount or 

GDP is spent on health. 

Sales 
If In laths) 

3. Stgte of Affairs of the Company: 

2015-16 

Profits 
�in lc*hs) 

Your Companies' entire focus is on providing quality medicines at affordable prices. A review 

of the Indian Pharmo Companies for the F.Y. 2018-19 shows that the Companies have to 

compete on low cost generics, so rationalisation of cost of production and marketing are very 

Important factors. 

As per our current Government Policies. health awareness Is given the utmost priority through 

''Aayushman Bharat Scheme" for the poor and the underprivileged. This accounts for about 

25 crores of Indians and will create a voluminous market and will definitely boost t·he 

requirements for generics. Your Company to ensure competitiveness In the market has 

started participating in Government Tender Business and has already been successful in 

winning some tenders which would yield higher growth in the future. 

Further, the licenses of two new departments of ointments I gels I creams and pellets 

manufacturing of different APis hove been obtained and the validation processes of some of 
the products are also over, so your Cornpany looks a11ead to achieve more revenue through 

consumer heol'lh products in the ointments and creams market. 

17 
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4. Dividend: 

lhe Board of Directors have recommended a Dividend of 6.5% on the paid-up Equity Shares 
of the Company payable to those shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the 
Register of Members as on the Record date. 

5. ShareCapltal: 

The paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31 .  2019 was l�s. 3, 98,96.340 
consisting of 39,$9,634 Equity Shares having Face Value of Rs. 1 0 each. The Equity Shares of 
theCompanyare listed ontheBSE Limited since Marc1121, 201 6. 

During the F.Y. 201 8 - 201 9; there was an increase in the capital structure of the Company. 
Considering the Business expansion and requirement of fl:lhds; tile Company had Issued 
5,64,500 Equity Shares having Face Value of Rs. 1 0/- each under the Preferential Guidelines of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009 at Rs. 225/- each including premium of Rs. 215/- each to the Eligible 
Investors and Promoters. The detaiis of the Issue is available on the website or the Company 
via the Postal Baliot noticedated May24, 2018. 

An Increase in the Capital structure of the Company has occurred from the Financial Year 
201 7-1 81ill the Financial Year 2.01 8-1 9 as shown in the table below: 

No. 61 Equity Issue Price Aii.otment dote Equity Shore Capital Equity Share capitol 
.�hares before Qilotment after .allotment 

5.72.735 Rs. 150/- September 1 , 201 7 Rs. 2,35,24,000/- Rs. 2,92,51 ,350/-
4,99,999 Rs. 150/- January_16,  2018 RS. 2, 92,5.1, 350/- Rs. 3,42,51 ,340/-
5.64.500 Rs. 225/- August 1, 2018 Rs. 3,42,51 .340/- Rs. 3.98, 96,340/-

6. Transfer to R�serves: 

The Company proposes to transfer an amount of Rs. 3499.95 Lakhsto reserves for its future 
grmvth and diversification. 

7. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

Foreign Exchange Earnings: Export of Goods -Rs. 40 7 4. 88,593.88/-Lakhs 
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Import of Goods - Rs. 1 92,06,298/- Lakhs 

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the Company proactively manages 
Foreign Exchange Risk to protect value of exposures, if any; with an objective to manage 
financial statement volatility. Currently, the Company has in place appropriate risk hedging 
strategy for its Imports and Exports. Foreign Exchange exposures are periodically reviewed 

18 
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and if necessary, hedged while avoiding trading and speculative positions. The Board 
periodically reviews Foreign Exchange Exposure. 

4500 

4000 

350.0 

2000 

1500 
1000 

500 
0 

201,S...16 

l'orelgn Exchange lnfi9W - QuHio_y� 

__ (!D. Lal<h$) 

2016·11 2.011·1.11 

8. Board Meetings and Committee Meetings: 

20HI-19 

• Seven (7) Board meetings were held during the Financial Year 2018-19. The details of the 
Board meetings and the a.ttendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance-Report annexed herewit h. 

• Four [4) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2018-19. The 
details of the Audit Committee Meetings and the attendance of the Directors are 
provided In the Corporate Governance Report annexed herewith. 

• Three (3) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the 
Financial Year 2018-19. The details of the Committee Meetings and the attendance of the 
Directors are provided In the· Corporate Governance Report annexed herewith. 

• One (1 )  Independent Director Committee Meeting was held during the Financial Year 
201 8-1 9. The details of the Committee Meeting and the attendance of the Directors are 
provided In the Corporate Governance Report annexed herewith. 

• Three (3) Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held during the Financial 
Year 2018-19. The details of the Comml ltee Meetings and the attendance of the Directors 
are provided in tile Corporate Governance Report annexed herewith. 

9. Directors and l<ey Managerial Personnel: 

During the year. the Non-Executive Directors of tile Company had no pecuniary relationship 
or transactions with tile Company; other than the sitting fees. 
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1 0. Director Retiring by Rotation: 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 and in terms of the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company; Mr. Narlman Medhora 
(DIN: 02060357) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 32nd Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, l1as offered himself for re-appointment. His re-appointment is being placed for 
your approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Members of the Company may 
refer to the accompanying Notice of the 32nd Annual General Meeting· of the Company for 
the brief Resume of Mr. Nariman Jvledhora. 

1 1 .  Declaration by Independent Directors: 

The Company had received declaration from all the Independent Directors under 
Section 1 49(7) of the Companies Act 2013 in the first Board Meeting of the Financial Year 
201 8-1 9 held on May 24, 201 8; stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid 
down under Section 1 49(6) of the Companies Act. 2013. 

12.  Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of Its Committees and of 

lndLII.is.il.ls:a! DjrectQJs_: 

The Board of Directors had carried out an Annual Evaluation of its performance, Boord 
Committees and individual Directors, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 
and SEBi listing Regulations, 2015. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the 
Direclors on the basis of criteria such as the Board Composition and structure effectiveness of 
Board process, participation in the long-term strategic planning, information, functioning etc. 

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from 
the Committee Members on the basis of the criterio such as the Composition of Committees, 
effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc, 

The contribution and impact of individual members is evaluated on a number of parameters 
such as level of engagement. independence of judgment. preparedness on the issues to be 
discussed, conflicts resolution and contributions to enhance the Board's overall effectiveness. 
In addition, the Chairperson was also evaluated on the key aspects of her role by other Board 
members. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors wds convened on May 24, 201 8; to discuss the 
following a�pe.cts: 

i Review the performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
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II Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the 

views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors; 

Ill Assess t·he quality. quantity and timeliness or flow of information between the Company's 
Management and the Board that is necessary tor the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform Its duties. 

Outcome of evalua tion orocess 

Based on Inputs received from the Members. It emerged that the Board had a good mix of 

competency. expelience. qualifications and diversity. OVerall. the Board was functioning very 
well in a cOhesive and interactive manner. 

13. Directors' Responsibllitv Statement: 

Pursuant to Section 1 34[ 3)! c) of the Companies Act, 201 3; your Directors hereby confirm that: 

1 In the preparation of the Annual Accounts. the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there ore no material departures; 

i i  Appropriate accounting poliCies have been selected and applied consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
Profit of the Company for !hat period: 

ill Proper and sufficient care hod been taken for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

Assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other Irregularities; 

lv The Annual Accounts had been prepared on a Going Concern basis; 

v The Internal Financial Controls had been laid down. to be followed by the Company 
and such Internal Financial Controls ore adequate and were operating effectively; and 

vt In order to ensure compliance with the provisions of all apprteable lows, proper systems 
has been devised and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

14. Particulars of Employees: 

None of the employees of the Company fall under the limits laid down In Rule 5[2) of the 

Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) l�ules, 2014. 

15. Extroct of the Annual Return: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92[3) oft  he Companies Act 201 3 read with Rule 1 2  of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules. 201 4: the extract of the Annual Return 
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In Form MGT-9 is available on the website ot the Company at www. fredungroup.com 

16.  Training and Human Resource Management: 

lnclio is one of the worldfs biggest supplier of gener ic  drugs and ranks amongst the top five 
fastest growing Phorma markets; buHhe top-line growth is declining along with lhe profitability. 
II needs to invest more Capital in R & D which Is becoming hmd to find. The only solution is to 
identify the talent within the organization and develop their mindset and cullure. It requires big 
changes In organizational thinking as it relates to their complete lifestyle transformalion. 

Your Company makes concerted efforts to retain quality people with leadership 
commitments and who can align with the Company ethics. This will ensure checks and 
double checks to maintain the quality of the products dnd reduce the costs. An outcome­
based approach was adopted wil'h the trained leaders and a skilled workforce helped lhe 
Company gain a competitive edge. 

Your Company has continuously focuseej on development and training programs of tts star 
performers, especially in the regulatory .area and R & D. This has yielded good results as your 
Company was successful in manufacturing latest molecules which were out ·of patent and 
the In-house processes made them cost effective. 

Your Company has already registered some of the products in the ARV segment and are 
continuing to register in different markets. Understanding the impoitance of the basic strategy 
of Human Resource Management your Company believes that It will yield benefits ior the 
Company by maintail1ing good relations with the employees and will help to enable a 
sustainable corporate lifestyle. 

Your Company consistently abides by Human Resources Policy that is found on a set of 
principles of equality of opportunity, continuing personnel development fairness, mutual trust 
and teamwork. 

Current Employees Tenure with the Company In years 

Yeors 
• �ow 5 

• .5 16 J(j 

Ell I!J- Io 15 
l:;.tv�:) 

• ;n & 1\CO'l>e· 
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1 7 .  Sul;)§idiorvCompany.AssociateCompany and Joint Venture Compqny�_ 

Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries or Associates or Joint Venture Companies. 

18.  Deposits: 

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public. 

19. Particulars of Locms, Guarantees an_c!__lnvestments: 

During the year, your Company has not given any new loons or made any Investments and 
has not provided any Guarantees except those which ore already mentioned in the Audited 
Accounts of the Company. 

20. �tatutorvAudltors: 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. Savio & Associates, Chartered Accountants (I CAl 

Registration No: 1 09361 W] were appointed at the 3 1 st Annual General Meeting of the 

Company held on September 27, 2018 for a period of 5 years i.e. up to the conclusion of the 
36th Annual General Meeting that will be held in the year 2023. 

The Company had received a confirmation from M/s. Savio & Associates to the effect that 
their appointment Is In compliance with the eligibility criteria in terms of Section 1 4 1  (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The requirement of ratification of the Auditors' Appointment each year during the 
continuation at their tenure Is waived off by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and thus there is no 
requirement each year to pass a resolution for Ratification of the Auditors' Appointment. 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. Savio 
& Associates. in their Report doted June 10,  2019; on the Financial Statements of the 

Company for Financial Year 2018-19, 

2 1 .  Particulars of Contracts qrArrangeme!J.tswlth Related Parties: 

There were no materially significant Related Party transactions made by the Company during 
the year that would fall under the scope of Section 1 8 8  of the Companies Act 2013. 

Disclosure In formAOC-2 in terms of Section 1 34(3](h] of the Companies Act 2013 is annexed 
as 'Annexure A'. 

The policy on materiality of information I documents and dealing with It has been approved 
by the Board and the some is also available on the website of the Company at 

www.fredungroup.com 
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22. Secretarial Audit Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the 
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014; the 
Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Rajendra and Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company tor the F.Y. ended March 3 1 ,  2019. The 

Secretarial Audit Report Is annexed as 'AnnexureB'. 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by 
M/s. Ra]endra and Co .. Practicing Company Secretaries, In their Secretarial Audit Report 
doted June '10, 2019 on the Secretarial and other related records of the Company for 

Financial Year 2018-19, 

23. Cost Audit Report: 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records 

and Audit) Amendment Rules, 201 4: your Company with reference to its Ph arm a business is 

required to maintain the cost records as specified under Section 1 4 8  of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the said cost records are also required to be audited by the Practising Cost 

Accountants. Your Company is maintaining all the cost records referred above. 

The Board. on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. had appointed M/s. Joshi Apte 

& Associates, Practising Cost Accountants. as the Cost Auditors tor conducting the audit of 
cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2019- 20. 

Further, the Cost Auditors are in the process of completing the Cost Audit tor the Financial Year 

2018" 1 9  and It will be completed before the due date. 

24. O.�tails of Significant Material Orders: 

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulatory Authorities or the Courts or 
Tribunals that may have an impact on the Going Concern status and Company's Operations 

in the future. 

25. Internal Financial Control system and their adequacy: 

Company has well established Internal Financial Control System for reviewing the Financial 
reporting of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19. 



26. Corporate Social Respqn_�bilitv: 

Fredun Pra,maceul\cals I 1d Anr'-""1 llnporl 201 B-20 19 
----- ---- - -----

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility) Rules, 201 4 and Schedule VII to the Act: the provisions of the Corporate Social 

Responsibility shall be applicable to every Company which has during the immediately 

preceding Financial Year-

• Net worth of Rs. 500 Croreor more, or 
• TurnoverofRs. 1 000Croreor more, or 
• Net Protit of Rs. 5 crore or more. 

During the year under review i.e., for tho Financial Year 201 8-1 9; your Company had earned 
Profit before tax of Rs. 6 . 1 6  crores and thus the provisions of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
as enumerated under Section 135 of the Companies Act 20'1 3 and rules made thereunder 

are applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 20 1 9-20, 

The Company is in the process of constitution of the Committee for the said matter which shall 
look out into this matter. take adequate steps and guide the Board to undertake necessary 
activities under the Corporate Social Responsibility regime. Further, the Policy on the 
Corporate Social Responsibility, the corpus to be spend, the social activity to be undertaken 
shall be discussed and finalized by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation of 
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and our stakeholders will be kept informed of 
every material update on the said matter. 

27. VIgil Mechanlsm/W:hj_stle Blower Policy; 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. to provide a formal mechanism to the 

Directors, Employees and its Stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, 

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Polley. The 

policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and provides for 

direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy is also available on the 

websiteottheCompanyatW'I'fW.fredungroup.com 

28. Conservation of Energy. TechnoloqyAbsorpl!on: 

Companies which take care of their Internal structures. systems and work culture can only 
benefit in the long term. It is must to have a high performing and competent Quality Control 
and Quality Assurance team which monitors the compliance of all the regulatory aspects of 
manufacturing. Conservation of energy in all the departments and its focused audit is an 

ongoing challenge which requires a proactive compliance. Since last two to three years your 
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Company has heavily invested in latest machineries tor both the manufacturing and packing 

departments. This has helped in speeding up the production with minimum maintenance 

and smooth running thus reducing the cost of electricity and time. 

The upgraded GMP compliant machines are reliable. automated and reduces 
dependence on manpower and saves operating cosi per botch. The other integrated 

systems with proper data storage and consistent performance also lowers the cost of 

production. Continuous monitoring Is done of existing compressors, boilers, electric heaters, 

pumps. etc for enhancing energy efficiency, 

Your Company is maintaining an ETP plant and complying with the Pollution Control 

Regulations applicable in the State of Maharashtra. 

As your Company has a full-fledged R & D department research on manufacturing generic 

versions of just out of patent drugs Is continuously going on. Once the manufacturing process 

is validated, it is tested on a pilot scale and thereafter the products are sent for registration In 

the countries as per the market demand. Process improvements with latest experiments to 

improve the quality of our fast-moving products are carried out as a part of technology 
absorption. This continuous upgradation of technology benefits the Company by cutting 

down the cost time and improving the quality of the products. 

29. Compliance with provisions qf Sexual Harassment of Women at Workolace 

(Preve!'ltion. Prohibition and RedressallAct, 20_] 3: 

The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of Women Employees. An 
Internal Complaints Committee has been formed for each location of the Company under 

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act. 

2013. The Company has a broad and comprehensive policy in place to deal with any such 

situation. The Polley is available on the website of the Company at WNW_,_f�edungroup.com 

No case of Sexual harassment was reported to the Internal Complaints Committee during the 
year under review. 

30. Reo;eiptotAward: 

Your Company continuously endeavours to function in the most efficient manner In order to 
accomplish and achieve its targeted goal in the most efficient and effective manner thus 

optimizing the available resources I synergies. In the month of December 2018; your 
Company had received a Prestigious and a well-recognized award in the Pharma Sector 
"Pharma Leaders Mo�t Promising_ and Dvnamlc Company of the Year 2_Q_l8" at Phqtm_� 
!,_eaders Power Brand Awards __ 2_0_1_8 organiz_E)d by Mr. Satva Brahma. Chairman & Editor in 
�hie!. Network 7 Media Group. The award was presented by Dr. Sudhakar Shinde. CEO of 

" 



Fredun Pr,ormaceutcals Ltd. Annual Report 20 I 8-2019 

Mahatma Jyotiba Phule Jan Arogya Yojana and CEO of Aayushman Bharat and Dr. Mukesh 

Bhalra, CMD of Dr. Batra's Positive Health Clinic Pvt. Ltd. and Mr. Satya Brahma. Chairman & 
Editor in Chief, Network 7 Media Group. 

3 1 .  P:arficulars Qf Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel/ Employees: 

As required under Section 197 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014; the 
details of the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the employees and 

the percentile change in the remuneration: as required under the Rules are furnished 
hereunder: 

(I) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19: 

1 2,00,000 

Director to the Median Re-
I I 

6.03:1 

The Independent- Non-Executive Directors of the Company are only getting sitting fees. 

(II) The percentage increase in_r:_�_rnuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Ch[<;J! 

Financial Otficer CQmgmySecret_aryin the Financial Year 2018-19: 

remuneration 

Dl. 

The Independent- Non-Executive Directors of the Company are only getting sitting fees. 

Further. the Board of the Company had appointed Ms. Priyanl\a Chaturvedi as the Company 

Secretary Cum ComplianceOfliceroftheCompanyw.e.t. September 18, 2018. 



Fredun Pi'.nfl nu�"u!iculs 1 td. Mnual Repa.1 20 I G-2019 

The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters 

provided in Section 1 78{3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance 
Report which forms part of this report. 

(Ill) The percentage inc;r�ase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial 
Year: 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: Nil 

Explanation: For calculation of median remuneration, the employee count taken for the 
Financial Yeor 2018-19 and 201 7-1 8, comprise employees (including permanent workmen) 

wllo have served for the whole of the respective Financial Years. 

(iv) Th� number of Permanent Employees on th� rolls of the Company: 

There were 223 permanent employees as on March 3 1 ,  2019. (inclusive of permanent 
workmen) 

(v) Average .Qercentlle increase already rn_ade in the salaries of employees other than t]:le 
Maoagerial _f'EO_irsonnel In the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percenm12 
increose in the managerial remuneration and_justitication thereof It there are any_?_xceptional 
circumstances tor increase In the managerial remunerat_ipn: 

Average Percentile Increase for other than Managerial Personnel: 2.12 

Average Percentile Increase for Managerial Personnel: NIL 

The average increase in the salaries of Employees excluding Managerial Personnel during 
Financial Year 2018-19was 2. '1 2%, 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid during the period under review Is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company. 
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32. Acl<nowledgement: 

The Board of Directors appreciate the contribution made by the employees of the Company 

and acknowledge their hard work and dedication to ensure thcrt the Company consistently 

performs well and remains a leading player in the Pharma Industry. The Directors gratefully 

acknowledge the support and confidence reposed by the shareholders of your Company. 

Further, the Board placed on record their sincere tl1anks to its Bankers, business associates, 
consultants, and various Government Authorities tor their consistent support extended to your 

Company during the year under review. acknowledge the support and confidence reposed 

by the shareholders oftl1eCompany. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 10, 2019 

By Order of the Board 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Sd/­

Daulat Medhora 

DIN: 0 1  7 45277 

(Chairperson & Jt. Managing Director) 
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CONTRACTS BY 

THE COMPANY 

WITH 

RELATED PARTIES 
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ANNEXURE A 

FORM AOC- 2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) 

of the Cor'nlxJnies (Accounts) Rules, 2014} 

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts 1 arrangements entered Into by 

the Company with related po1ties referred to In sub-Section ( 1 )  of Section l 88 of the 
Companies Act 20 l 3 1ncludlng certain Arm's Length Transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1 .  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

No such transactions were entered durtng the financial year 201 8·19. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

The contracts or arrangements or transactions entered with the related parties during the 

financial year 201 8· 1 9  under review, were not material and the same were disclosed in the 

notes to accounts forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 
2019. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 10, 2019 

By Order of the Board 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Sd/· 

Fredun Medhora 

(Managing Director) 

DIN: 0 1 745348 
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ANNEXURE B 

To 

The Members, 

Form MR-3 

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2019 
{P<JtSJI(1tll 10 Section 204f1J 01 ffle Comwnlos k.l. 2013 and Rtie No. 9 Of/he 

Ox'l)< � (/'lpptYllmetll and /lerni.Jnerolion ol Mooogerlol Perwnr.el} 11u� 2014/ 

FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

1/We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

proviSions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Fredun Pharmaceuticals 

Limited bearing CtN: L24239MH198 7PLC043662 (hereinotter called 'the Company'). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner that provided us o reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books. papers. minute books, forms and returns 

flied and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

Secretarial Audit. the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations 

mode by the Management, we hereby report 'I hat· in our opinion, the Company has, during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 ('Audit Period') 

generally complied With the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

hos proper Board processes and compliance mechanism In place to the extent. in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records made available 1'0 us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 

on 31st March 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(I) The Companies Act. 201 3 ('the Acr) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act. 1 956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; 

(Iii) The Depositories Act, 1 996 and the Reguia·llons and Bye-laws framed there under; 

[iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1 999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal 

Commercial Borrowings; 
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v) The rollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act 1992 ('SEBI Act') 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indio (Substantial Acquisition of Shores and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1 ;  

[b) The Securities and Exchange Boord of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992 and The Securilies and Exchange Board of Indio (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and amendments from time to time - Preferential 

Issue under Chapter VII of the soid Regulation; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

(e) The SecuriHes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

[f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1 993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 - Not applicable to the Company during the audit period; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indio (Buyback of Secuflties) Regulations, 1998 

- Not applicable to the Company during the audit period. 

(I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Obllgol'lon and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 201 5. 

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely: 

1 . Bombay ShOps and Establishments Act. 

2 .  The Factories Act. 1948 and rules and regulations there under. 

3. Income Tax Act. 1961 relating to Tax Deducted at source as per the Compliance 

Certificate dated June 10,2019. 

4. The Employees Provident Fund Act. 

5. ThePoymentofWagesAct, 1936. 
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6. TheMinimumWagesAct 1948. 

7. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1 965. 

8. Land Revenue Laws of the Respective state. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the folloWing: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered Into bytheCompanywith BSE Limited. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules. Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. as mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

• The Board of Directors of the COmpany Is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in 

the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

• Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days In advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further Information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

• Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate wUh the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. 

We further report that during the audit period the Company has passed the following Special 

Resolutions I event which are having bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the 

above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. 

� Special Resolutions passed at the 31 sf Annual General meeting held on 27th September 

2018: 

i. Re-Appointment of Mr. Nariman Medhora (DIN: 02060357) as the Whole Time Director 

of the Company for a period of 3 years; 
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II. Transaction with Related Parties under Section 188 oftneCompaniesAct, 201 3; 

Ill. Increase tne Borrowing Limit ufs 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act 2013 upto Rs. 100 
crores. 

� The Shareholders had passed necessary resolutions via Postal Ballot the results of which 

weredeclaredonMay7, 2018-

I.Ratlfication of the Equity Shares Issued pursuant to tne Shareholder's Consent received In 
an Extraordinary General Meeting held on July 7. 2017; as per tne In-principle Approval 

received from the BSE. 

... The Shareholders had passed necessary resolutions via Postal Ballot the results of which 

were dedared on June 30, 20 18-

i.To Issue Equity Shares of Rs 1 0/- each on Preferential basis to the Eligible Investors at 
Rs. 225/-each Including the premium of Rs. 21 5/- each. 

ii.To Issue Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each on Preferential basis to the Promoters of the 
CompanyatRs. 225/- each including the premium of Rs. 21 5/- each. 

... The Shareholders had passed necessary resolutions via Postal Ballot the results of which 
were declared on January 12. 2019-

I.To Regularize appointment of Dr. Chandrkant Shah; Non-Executive Director Independent 

Director of tne Company. 

ForRajendra And Co. 

Company secretaries 

CS. Rajendra R. Vaze 

FCSNo.: 4247 CPNo 1975 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 1 o, 2019 

Note: This report Is to be read with my Annexure '81' of even date Which Is annexed and forms 

an Integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE Bl 

To 

The Members 

FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Our report of even date Is to be read along with this letter . 

.,. MonagemeQt� 

1 . Maintenance of secretarial record is the responslblll!y ot the management of the Company. 
0Lr responsibility Is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit . 

.,. Auditors Responsibility_;. 

1 . We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriaJ·e 1·o obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected In secretarial records. We 

belleve that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

2. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts otl'he Company. 

3. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws. rules and regulations and happening of events. etc. 

1 . The compliance or the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws. rules, regulatiOns. 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedure on test basis. 

2. The Secretarial Audit reporl is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

For Rajendra And Co. 
Company Secretaries 

cs. Rajendra R. Vaze 

FCS No.: 4247 CP No 1975 

Place: Mumbal 
Date: June 10,2019 
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Fredun Pharmaceuticals Umiled Is a 'NHO approved Pharmaceuticals Company; exporting 

to nearly 30 countries and fatally committed lo supplying affordable quality medicines for 
decodes. Your Company has rapidly progressed in l'he last 5 years and to achieve our goals 
the Company has added 2 more deportmen1s for manufacturing oln1ments. creams, gels 
and ready to use pellets and DC Granules. several automatic machineries hove been 

installed to increase the production ot Tablets, Capsules, Dry Syrups, Pellets and Topical 

formulations. Latest blister packing machines are also installed to take care of the increased 
production. 

Our e;<tensive generic portfolio will play a significant role in the growth strategy in various 
markets. Continuous efforts are made to adopt iotest technology to improve the cost and 

quality of our products. ·The outcome will be o better value for our stakeholders a t  large. 

1 .  Pharmaceuticals Sector Overview: 

We ore lhe fastest growing economy in the world and 1oday the slx1h largest In the world 
generating high growth role with low inflation. The pharmaceuticals Industry ploys a unique 

role In Improving the lives of the 
people. 

Public Expondltute On Heollh By Counhies' Income Gl'oupa 

As a country, we need 10 substan1lolly 6.0%;-------------­
increase our Heal1hcare budgets. 

Our per person overage heatthcore 
spend Is approximately 85$ Which Is 

amongst lhe lowest if compared to 

other coun1ries. Ayushman Bhorat Is a 
positive step towards universal lt9n II'IOO IM u � .. , ,�kid. -eo i#.\'01 �1'<1 11 1 • I»Vo 111 r lncomc 

Cc .. llnt•t In�• C«.m!« IIIC�'Il8 C....WII't COUII!Mt 

healthcare in India but It needs to 

accommodate tertiary core in Its scheme of things. 

Wodd Bonk Income Groups 

The government in its Union Budget 2019 has raised the allocation ror Ayushman Bhorat 
scheme by a whopping ' 167 percent to Rs 6,400 crore for 201 9·2020. The allocation for 
Ayushman Bhorat scheme stood at  Rs 2, 400 crore in 20 18· 2019. 

The heaHhcore sector needs pfivatization where implementation should be undertaken by 

private service providers to ensure that uniformity in quality heal1hcore Is maintained. If the 
gov:ernment ploys a role of a monitoring agency, we will fare much better to deliver value­
based heaithcare. 
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Government spending money on 

Govetl'lmenl Expehefiture on lleallh in tn-ctia (US$ Billion) 
healthcare stays at around 1 % of the 

GDP. The healthcare sector can only get 

affordable if the government revises this 

upwards. Over the lost few years, the 

Indian Healthcare Sector has begun a 

major overhaul in order to attain the 

Prime Minister's goal of healtl1care for 

all. f\Jot only our Government Institutions 

AO 
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--..J are involved but Corporate and Private 
S9ur.«.�; Business Moniter ll rt .. urolicr·;ot �co""""" Suotev 2fl ' '  111 Hospitals have also come forward to be 

a partofthis initiative. 

Another Important dimension of our Government is making pollution free. f\Jation and ensuring 

tile security of the people. 

India is a land of opportunl!les. The pharma Companies are growing both organically and 

inorganically. The Indian Pharma Industry Is likely to be in the top 1 0 Global Markets by value by 

the year 2020. High burden of disease, good economic growth leading to higher disposable 

incomes, improvements in healthcare Infrastructure and improved healthcare financing are 

driving growth in the domestic market. 

By allowing 100% FDI for Greenfield projects on(j 7 4% FDI ror Brownfield projects will initiate 

quality in the medical technology sector. Another significant Improvement is done in the 

maternal and infant health. 

India's pharmaceutical exports grew a robust 10. 7:Z% In 2018-19 and raced past the $ 1 9  

billion marl< for the first time. Exports touched S 1 9 . 1 4  billion In the year 2018-19 as against 

$1 7.28 billion in 201 7- 1 8 :  the previous highest. 

The coun1ry's pharmaceutical industry is expected to expand at a CAGR of 22.4% over 

20 l 5....:20 to reach $55 billion. India is the second largest contributor of global pharmaceutical 

workforce. The pharmaceutical sector was valued at $33 billion in 2017. Due to rapid 

urbanization and increasing consumer spending including spending on medicines que to 

healthcare awareness in India, the Indian ph arm a market is expected to grow substantially. 

2. Current Pharma Sector Scenario: 

Though the e.conomic situation In most of the emeiglng markets is challenging, the overall 

outlook for Global Pharma market Is expected to increase. According to the World Industry 
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Report. global generic drug sales will be 29,2% or the total Pharmaceuticals sales by the year 

2022. on increase of 1 .2% from the year 2017. Generic drugs accounts for more than 80% by 

volume of all the drugs dispensed across the world. 

R&D Investments and innovation can drive the growth of the Pharma morket. At present 

smaller Companies are also focussing on developing bio-similars and registering just out of 

patent drugs In developing markets by cheaper and quicker In-House manufacturing 

prC)cess. BY adopting such technologies. the small Companies can hov.e greater 

competitive advantage foi themselves as innovating a new drug is an expensive proposition. 

Your Company is also In the process of developing such molecules and has spent und 

continues to spend .o substantial amount on R & D. The Company as on March 31 , 201 9 had 

in total 1 9  3 Orugs registered whereas 450 Drugs applications under registration: in different 

countries. The Company will also continue to out- license some formulations to augment the 

growth. Our objective will be to increase our generic exports in ROW with our new product 

range of ointments. creams and pellets of different APis. 

Moreover, after the structural changes like implementation of GSTin India In the year 201 7. the 

outlook of the industry remains broadly positive. Your Company has also a positive outlook 

due to some good drivers shown below: 

1 .  NatiOnal Health Polley; 2015 which focusses an increasing public expenditure on 

healthcare segment and Increasing of health insurance; 

2. Reduction in approval time for new faciiities; 

3. Plans to setup new Pharmaceuticals education and research institutes; 

4. Due to growing number of stress related diseases and increasing fatal diseases; 

demand for cost effectivemedicines will Increase; 

5. Indio has become a manufacturing hub for generics; hence. availability of skilled 

manpower will ease out and accessibility of drugs will greatly improve. 

The Management is th.us quite positive on Its current expectations and projections for the 

future of your Company but some known and unknown risks like change in local and global 

conditions, sudden changes in government policies. unexpected manufacturing problems 

due to unavailability of APis or change in market dynamics may impact the expectations 

and results of the Company. 
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3. Business Outlool<: 

For the past 2-3 years the Company has been systematically investing in its productive 

infrastructure by installing additional granulation departments and high speed tableting and 

blister packing machines. This has yielded results In Increased production, sales and the 

turnover of your Company. Your Company had also planned for two more departments to. 

manufacture ointments. creams, gel and also pellets manufacturing department of different 

APis. The licence of both the above-mentioned departments are already obtained and 

vallda11on of the commercial batches are completed. Hence, your Company expects to 

manufacture ointments, creams. gels and capsules of different API pellets. This will 

substantially help fhe growth of the Company as the machines instal led are automated and 

In today's highly regulated pharma Industry, regulation and compliance has a major 

consideration which allows the Pharma Companies to use electronic records and signatures. 

There are obvious benefits of advanced automated machines though the cost of upgrading 

is huge. Your Company has heavily Invested in the upgradcition and expansion of the 

manufacturing unit at Palghar. The Company is hopeful of procuring enhanced credit limits 

from the Bankers. 

4. l<ey Growth Factors: 

The. other key grovvth factors for the·demand of Pharma Industry are shown below: 

Growth & ageing global 
population 

•In "20'10, there �Ner.e ,on 
e-stimated t, . 9  b r l l l o n  
p-eople I n  l h e  w.orld,  
• By 2 0 2 0  1 1l.e wor l q 
Rot:>ula!l'on will be mo�¢ 
tli.an 7,6 billion. By Q020, 
ma}'e: th·an r 3%' 9f tlie 
f'>!lPlllplip[i In flie wor ) CJ 
will b�0\\1�0 6.0 or older. 

. 

Growing Sick Population 

.• Sedentary nlest¥lt7ond. p§e 
ore causing rnany Illness, 
By :2025 7 3.5 million & sy 
2040 - '642 million number of 
people wllf b'e affecte� by 
!iltabatlil:s. 

Rising incidence of 
non-communicable 

& infectious diseases 

• WHO p redldfs ll�at. by20?0,, 
n o n - c o m  m u n'l c abel� 
dlsr,;loses wl.ll account for 44 
million deathS' a year - 15% 
moretllaflin 20m. 

Improved access to healthcare Higher affordability 

• More p,e!i>ple h@'Ze a-ccess Ia nealihcare tl:ldn 
ever before. 
• Emergn'lg econo�mi.es 01e walking hard lo 
improve ocoessio healthcare 

•1tie gsGJwing m!Bdl�-eloss �opulblloll wllh h\Qller 
ul.spos�bte lnqome Is dl::)1e to effotd qudlity 
hearthcare. 
• By 2020, rnare ihc;in 40%. of all houselloles In 
0h1Ao. India &' Indonesia. will be "middle-- doss''­
defined as lbose with annual in<oomes or 5,0@0 
and 1 5,000 USD, 
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As shown above, your Company will try to focus on local mo11<et also to overcome the 
challenges of exporting generic formulations with declining profits and try to focus on 
Improving lhe well being and health of our poor people by supplying the cost - effective 
quality medicines. 

5. Challenges: 

The Indian Pharma Industry has been facing several regulatory challenges like Foreign Direct 
Investment (t=Dt) Policy, Pricing Polley, Patent Protection, Regulatory approvals and 

Compulsory Licensing, which require careful consideration by the Companies fn their pursuit 

of growth. 

The Indian Pharma Industry till now Is concentrating on generic rno11<et as Indio enjoys global 

dominance and generics will still remain the revenue generator for Indian expor1s. But 

plunging profitability in regulated markets with increased registration charges leads to global 

challenges. Hence, your Company has decided to concentrate on other growth avenues, 

like increasing the products portfolio towards chronic therapies for diseases such as anti­

diabetics. cardiovascular and anti-depressants. Your Company Is already registered with 

Central Bureau or Narcotics, Indio and plans to expand its anti-depressants product range. 

The number of Indians with diabetes Is projected to reach US$7 3.5 million in 2025. The direct 
and indirect costs or treating such patients ore currently about US$420 per person per year. if 
these costs remain the some as they are now, Indio's total bill for diabetes would be about 

US$30 billion by 2025. (Source: PWC Report) 

As the standards of healthcare improve. the treatment cost may also rise. This would benefit 
the Company as anti-diabetic drugs are the major source of revenue for the Company. 

6. Human Resource Management at Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd� 

Peoples' contribution is the key to a Companies' continuous success & growth. Your Company 

makes efforts to build a diverse and inclusive work place emphasising on gender equality in 

all the departments of the Company. Meaningful opportunity for learning and gaining 

experience to the Internal talent is encouraged to develop and groom leaders from within the 

organisation. Communication and all-round collaboration are encouraged to instil a sense 

of belonging and pride in wor1<ing for Fredun Phatmaceullcals Ltd. 
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Tha Company has over the years followed the best Governance practices and maintaining a 
culture within the organizatton which promotes an overall development of the Interests of the 

stakeholders of the Company. The effect of good Corporate Governance practices leads to 

enhanced corporate transparency and boost the performance of the Company. 
Compliance of all applicable laws is an important element of efficient management and it 
ensures better scope 'for stakeholders as it enhances the creditability of the performance of 

any organization In the considerable course oftime. 

The Company had listed Its Equity Shares on March 21 . 201 6 and executed Listing Agreement 

with the BSE Limited. 

In Indio, Corporate Governance Standards for Listed Companies are regulated by Regulation 
1 7  to Regulation 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (I) of Sub-Regulation (2) of 
Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of Indio (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 (hereinafter referred to as "SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 201 5"). 

As per Regulation 1 5(2) of the Listing Regulation 201 5; the compliance with the Corporate 

Governance provisions as specified in regulations 1 7, 1 7(A), 1 8 ,  19.  20, 2 1 .  22; 23, 24. 24(A). 
25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation l2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of 

Schedule V shall not up ply. in respect of· 

(a) the listed entity hoving paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees Ten Crore 

and Net Worth not exceeding Rupees Twenty-Five Crore. as on the last day of the previous 
Financial Year. 

Your Company for the Financial Year ended March 3 1  . 201 9; had the Authorized Share 

Capital of Rs. 1 0  crores out of which the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company Is 

Rs. 3,98.96.340/- divided into 39,89,634 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0/- each and a Net-worth of 
Rs. 3.898. 92 1akhs. 

In lines with the above stated provision(s) the above-mentioned Regulation(s) ore not 

applicable to the Company. But with an intention of applying good Corporate Governance 
practices in the affairs of the Company, we have tried to adopt every possible aspect of the 

Corporate Governance norms in our business activities. as mandated under the SEBi llsting 
Regulations, 201 5. 

1 .  COMPANY'S PHibOSQPHY QN CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

"Corporate Governance is concerned with holding the balance between economic and 

social goals and between individual and communal goals. The governance framework is 
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there to encourage the efficient use of resources and equally to require oooountab/1/ty for 

f11e stewardship of those resources. The aim Is to align os nearly as possible the Interests of 

IndiVIduals. corporations and society. • 

- Dominic Cadbury 

Companies cannot achieve the highest levels of Corporate Governance overnight rather It Is 

o gradual process whereby the Company becomes ethically compliant by applying the 

various Corporate Governance practices provided by law. Corporate functioning is directed 

and exercised within the strict legal framework and compliance of corporate laws and 

regulations, Which ensures fairness to all stakeholders and protects the rights of minority 

shareholders. 

The Company's Governance framework is based on the following principles: 

• Optimum combination of Executive & Non-Executive Directors and size of the Board; 

• Timely disclosure of material information to the stakeholders; 

• Availability of Information to the Members of Board & Board Committees to enable them 

to discharge their fiduciary duties; 

• Ethical business conduct. 

2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Corporate Governance translates into - Independence, Transparency and Accountability of 

the Directors of the Company. The Boord is entrusted with the responsibility to ensure 

Independent check on the Corporate Law compliances, accountability of the Company 

and answerability to the stakeholders of the Company. 

The Company has a strong and diverse Boord of Directors, Independent of management with 

sufficient expertise to oversee corporate management on behalf of the Company's 

shareholders. The Board reviews and approves corporate strategies that ore intended to build 

sustainable long-term value. In making decisions. the Boord considers the interests of all the 

stakehOlders of the Company such os employees. customers, suppliers and the community 

In WhiCh the Company operates. 

The Board comprises of six Directors of which three Directors are Executive Directors and three 

Directors are Non-Executive Independent Directors which commensurate with 1he size of the 

Company, complexity and nature of various underlying businesses actlvl1ies. 

Board of Directors strictly follows the Company's Code of Conduct, The Board periodically 

reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company as well as toke steps to 

rectify instances of any non-compliances. 
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i. C9mgosition of the Board: 

The Chairperson of tile Board is .an E;xecutive Director, and as such 50% of the Boord 

Comprises of lndependen1' Directors. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that 

1'hey meet 'Independence' criteria as per Regulation 1 6  ( l )  (b) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations read with Section l 49 ( 6) of the Act. 

None of the Independent Directors of the Company are related to each other. The 

appointment of Executive Directors Including the tenure and terms of remuneration has 

already been approved by ·the members. 

• CX&c�e l""\II?C!Ct$ • nc'Eij:1.if'IC01'111)1GCk.:l* 

ii. Meetings of the Board: 

During Financial Year ("F.¥.'12018·1 9, the Soard met 7 limes on lhe following doles: 

.Y Attencled in perso.'1 .Y .o.bsent 

Meeting on 24/05i201 8. IR/0<1!20H \, Ol;DS/201 8, 14i0Bi201 8, 05!1 1/2018, 05/I Z/2018, l liD2i20 19 

Note: A Board Meeting was scheduled on May 30, 201 8 but due to lack of Quorum the 

Meeting was cancelled and re-scheduled on June l 8, 201 8. 

The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed four 

months. The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The notice and detailed 

agenda along with the relevant notes and other material information are sent in advance 

separately to each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the Meeting with the 

approval ot the Board. 
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iii. Scheduling and. Selection of Aaenda Items for Board Meetinru.;_ 

All departments of the Company schedule their work plans in advance, particula�y with 

regard to matters requiring consideration at the Board I Committee meetings. All such 

matters are communicated to the Chairman In advance so that the same could be 

included In the Agenda ·for the Board I Committee meetings. 

iv. AHendance and Directorships held: 

S•. 
No. 

1.  

2.  

3. 

4. 

5. 

6 . 

Information about the Directors of the Company, their attendance at the 31 sf Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on September 27, 2018 and the Number of 

Directorships In other Companies and Comml·ltee position in other Public Umited I Private 

Umited Companies as on March 31 , 20 19; are detailed below: 

lrectorshlp 
In other No, of othF,rr 
h,dion board 

Nbme ott Ootedl Category Alten<:�r;mc;e PUbliC:: Cortunlttees Relatlonttllp 
Director Joining the dllheAGM 1 Private In whfc;h will! 

Board held on limited Chairman! Dlrector5 
September Companies Member** 

27.2018 Chairman/ 
Member• 

Wlte or 

Dr. (Mr<.) 

Doulot 

Medhora 

Chairperson Mr. Nqrlrnon 

.Juno08. &JI. 
aHende(l NIL NIL 

M<xlhora & 
1987 Monoglng Motherot 

(liroctor Mr. Fredon 
Medhoco 
Sonot 

Mr. Fredufl 

Medhoro 

S<'>ptcrnber Managing 
Mr. Nanmon 

Alten(IOd NIL NIL Medhoro & 
15, 2006 Dlredo: 

Dr. (lll;r&.) l)oulat 

lv1Gdhoro 
Husband or 
Dt (Mrs.) [)QI/01 

""· *'' 

Medtroco 

men Seplcmbel 'MlOie rme llllen<kld ML NL 
Medlofo &  

30.2015 Dlreclor Father ot 
Mr. Fredun 
Medhoro 

Non 
Dr. Aspi 

Roirnolwo· 
September Ex<)Clltlve Attended NIL NIL None 30, 2015 IndO pendent 

Dlreclor 
ll.'on-

Dr. C.K. S 
September t xocutive Gtlended NIL NIL None 

30. 2015 Independent h01\ 

Dir ec tor 

Dr l'lohinto n September Non· 
Kongo JO, 2015 ExecutNe A« ended NIL NIL None 

Jndependent 

Dlec!ol 
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,. Excludes Dlrectorshfps ln tndion privote limited Companies, foreign Componi&S, Companies under Section 8 of the Companies 

Act, 201.3 
·u Represents memborshlps/ chalrmanshlpt�of AvdltCommmee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

1 . Chairmanship 1 Membersl1ip of Committee lhcludes Audit Committee and 

Stakeholders' Relalionships Committee of Indian Public Limited Companies excluding 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited. 

2. All the Directors of the Company comply with the requirements of the Directorship as 

stipulated under Regulation 1 7 A and Regulation 26(1 )  of Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 201 5. The Directors have 

made necessary disclosures regarding their Directorship I committee position to th.e 

Company. 

v . .Number of Shares and other Convertible Instruments held bl£ Non- Executive 

DirectQrs: 

Dr. Rohinton Kanga holds 500 Equity Shares and Dr. Aspl Raimalwala holds 8,000 Equity 

Shares of the Company as on March 3 1 , 2019, Apart from them no other Non-Executive 

Directors hold any Shares of the Company. Tt1e Company has not issued any convertible 

instruments c;iuring the financial year ended Match 3 1  , 201 9, 

3. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTO�S 

During the year 201 8-1 9, as per the requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 201 3 

and SEBI Listing Regulations, 201 5; a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 

May 24, 4018 without the presence of the Non - Independent Directors ahd the Menibers of 

the Management. The Meeting was conducted in 9n informal manner to enable the 

Independent Directors to discuss and review the performance of the Chairperson of the 

Company and for assessing the quality, quantity dnd timeliness of flow of Information 

betvveen the Company's Management and the Board. 

4. COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The Company Has 3 (Three) Board Level Committees to focus on critical functions of the 

Company and also for smooth and efficient business operations. viz.. Audit Committee, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Relalion�hip Committee. The 

Committees meet at regular intervals for .dHciding various matters and providing directions 

and authorizations to the management for its implementation. Minutes of the proceedings of 

each commitlee meeting are circulated to the members of that Committee for their 

comments and thereafter, confirmed and signed by the Chairperson of the respective 

Committee. The Board also takes note .of minutes of the meeting$ of the Committees duly 

approved by their respective Cha.irman and the material recommendations I decisions of 
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the CommitteeS. are placed before tile Board for approval I information. The Company 
Secretory acts as .the Secretary to these Committees. 

Details on role and composition of these Committees, including number of meeting held 
during FY 201 8· 1 9 and the related attendance are provided below: 

A. Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee of the Company Is constituted in line with ·the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013; read with Regulation 1 8  of SEBI Listing Regulations, 

201 5. The Audit Committee Invites such of the Executives, as i't considers appropriate, 

representatives ofthe Statutory Auditors to attend the meeting. 

During FY 2018-19, the Audit Committee met 4 times, on June 18 ,  2018*; August 14, 
201 8: November s; 201 8 and February 1 1 ,  201 9. The requisite quorum was present at 
all the meetings. The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on September 27, 201 8, 

Sr. No. Name ot Director PO'sltton Category 
No. of AUdlt·Col'r\mlttee 

Meetrngs«�:ttendetl 

I .  Dr. C. K:. Shall Chairman Non-ExecuHvf'l lndepend<:)nfl)iJet:kll 4 out ol 4 
2. D!. Rotilnton .Kanga lvlembel Non-Executive Independent Dl1eclo• 3 oul or � 
3. Mr. F1edun MedY>Kl fvlt-)1 T 1 ber Manacina Dileclol 4 outof 4 

Note (*) - The Mee!ing of rneAudll Commit1eewas scheduled on Moy 30: 201$ hul d\101o lockofQuoJum the lvleollng 
was adjourned to June 16, 2018. 

Tile Audit Committee of the Company Is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 

Company's internal controls and financial reporting process and lnJ·er alia. performs J·he 

following functions: 

• Overview of the Company's financial reporting process dnd the disclosure of its 

Financial Information to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair 

position and that sufficient and credible information are disclosed; 
• Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors. fixation of audit tee 

and also approval for payment for any other services; 
• Discussion with the external auditors before the audit commences, of th.e nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
• Reviewing the financial·statements and draft audit report, Including the quarterly/half 

yearly financial information; 
• Reviewing with the managemen11he annual financial statements before submission to 

the Board, focusing primarily on: 
• Any changes In accounting policies and practices; 
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• Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management: 
• Quoli ficolions in Draft Audit Report; 
• Significant adjustments arising out of audll·; 
• The going concern assumption; 
• Compliance with Accounting Standards; 
• Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning Financial 

Statements; 
• Any Related Party Transactions as per Accounting Standard 18; 
• Reviewing the Company's financial and Risk Management Policies; 
• Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities; 
• Reviewing with the management External and Internal auditors. and the adequacy of 

Internal Control Systems; 
• Looking Into the reasons for substantial defaults In payments to the Depositors, 

Debenture Holders, Shareholders [In case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors. 

B. Nomination an9 Remuneration Committee ("NRC")� 

The NRC of the Company is consl1tuted In line with ltle provisions of section 178 of ltle 

Companies Act. 20 13; read with Regulation 19  of ltle SEBi listing Regulations, 2015. The terms 

ol reference of the NRC includes various matters in conformity with the stoMory guidelines 

Including the following: 

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

Independence of a Director; 
• To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the 

Boord of Directors; 
• The remuneration 1 compensation I commission etc. to Directors will be determined by 

the Committee and shall be recommended to the Boord for approval; 
• Recommend to ltle Boord a policy fOI' selection and appointment of Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management posiHons; 
• Formulate and review criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors; 
• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing; 
• Such other matters as the Board may from time to lime request the Remuneration 

Committee to examine and recommend 1 approve and I or enforced by any statutory 

notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 

During Financial Year 2018-19, 'l'he NRC met 1hree times on June 18.  2018; 
Sep1ember 18 ,  2018; December 5. 2018. The requisite quorum was present ot all the 
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mee tings. lhe Chairman of the NRC was present at the last Annual General Meeting or the 

Companyheldon September27, 2018. 

Sr. No. Nome of Oireetor 

l .  01 , Rohk! tonKongo 
molwdo 

Shah 
1---:2�. 01. AsCI Ro 

3 Dr. C. K. 

Pollllon Category 

Chormcn Noo-Execull\/0 Independent Oiec!Of . 
Merrt'ler Non-Executive lndependsnl Diec!Of 
Melrber Nor\ FJ<OCUIIve IndePendent Oioctoo 

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 

No o ( NRC 

Meeting, ott11nded 

3 oul ()(3 
-

3oul ()(3 

3 oo.rl ol 3 -

The Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are determined bytt1e NRC. An 

indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a 

Director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective 

management of relationship with stakeholders, Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality 

and independence of behaviour and judgment 

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC"l: 

The SRC of the Company is cons1ituted in line with the provisions or Section 1 78(2) or the 

Companies Act, 201 3: read with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

The terms of reference of the SRC, Inter-alia, includes the following: 

• The Shareholders Relationship Committee of the Board is empowered to oversee the 

redressal of Investors Complaint{s), Share transfers, Non-Receipt of Annual Report, 

Dividend payment, Issue of Duplicate Certificate, Transmission (with and without legal 

representation) of Shares and other miscellaneous complaints; 
• Reviewing of Investors Complaints and take necessary steps for redressal 1t'lereof; 
• To perform all functions relaling to the Interest of the stakeholders of the Company as 

may be required by the pt"ovisions of the Companies Act .. 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder. 

During Financial Year 201 8-1 9, the SRC met thrice on August 7, 201 8; September 28, 201 8 

and on February 12,  2019. The requisi.te quorum was present at all the meetings. The 

Chairman of the SRC was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held 

onSeptember27, 201 8. 

Sr. No. Nome of Director Position category 
No, ofSRC 

lvl�tlng� aHended 

1. Dr. C . K. 51101) Ch o !rman No n - Exacuflve lndepende nl Dnecl ar 3 ou t of � 
2 . Dr. ROhin10n Kongo M ember I Non·E � e c u ' IVO Independent DlrOC i or 3oul o f 3 
3 . Or. (Mrs.l Doul ot t-;ledhoro Merntxx Jt. Mon!:!ll!!S Director 3 ouT of 3 
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Contact details of the Compilance Officer I ComQaQY. Secr.etary 

Ms. Priyanka Chaturvedi 
Company Secretory Cum 
ComplianceOfficer 

Address: 26. Mono) Industrial 
Premises, G.D. Ambekar Marg, 
Wadala, Mumbal. 400 031 

Email: 
12Il'i9.D.IS9 . ..c:;)laturvedirU!_ 
fredungroug. com 

All grievances received from the shareholders of the Company are being redressed 

expeditiously and satisfactorily at utmost priority, by the Secretarial Department and the RTA of 

the Company. 

Details of Shareholders' Complaints Received, Solved and Pending during FY 2018-19 

Number at complainis 1eceived so iar 
Number at complaints sol'loct to the $ollsfoct!nn of Sh01e!1olders 
Nurnb�>r or pendlnii-complalhts 

5. GENERAL BQPY MEETING 

01 
0 1 
Nil 

The details of the Shareholder's Meeting(s) held during the preceding 3 Financial Vems: 

Sr. Type ot Dale & rtme Loeotion Det1JII�.ot Special R�solulion passed 
No. MeEiling 

1 .  31st Annual lhursdo'/, Hotel Avm Ruby ot 8'1. •ro Reappoint Mr. Nar1man Mec!hora 
GBneral September Naigoum Closs Road. (DIN; 0206035 7). as Whole-time 
Meellng 27,2018 Near Dada! Railway Siotion. Dlrecto1 or ll1e Company 

at 09:00 A:M. DadOJEasl, •To Transqcl with Related Parties under 
Mumboi - 4000'14 Sect:on 188 of t11e Companies Act, 2013 

• To Increase .111e Bonowlng Limit u/s 
1 80(1 )(c) of the Companies Act. 
201 3 upto Rs 1 00 Cro1es 

2. Exf1a Ordinary Frid:'JY. Oom!e Sot)hag1ol1. 
Gene1al July 07. 2917 Jvtumboi Mma1hl • To ·Issue 5,72, 7·35 Equity ShOles on 
Meeting ot !0:30AM. Grnnlhsongraholoy. Pretei·enllal Basis to Eligible Investors 

1 72 Mumbol Morc.rthl al Rs. 1 50!· each lr:�cludtng premium 
Grunlhsor.gfol'ralov lvlarg. otrls. 1401· each 
Noigoon. tv'•umbol · <100 01 d 

3. 301 'Annual Tuesday. Ramee Guest U!1e, • To increase the Auihofised Snare Copitol 
Gene1ol Se(>lember Holei-Dodof Plot No. 3, from Rs. 6 c1ores to Rs. I 0 c101es 
Meeting 28.2017 Kat iino<:>r Road, Doctor • Appointment of Mr. Frectun Med�.oro 

<'lt 9:30A.M. Mlllnboi:4(l.001 4. (DIN 017 45348) as the Managing Dir<�cto1 
of the Company 

• Appointment of Or. (Mrs) D N t·Jiedhoro 
(DIN 01 745277) as the Whole Time 

-

Director designated as Joint Managing Direclor 
of the Company 

4. 29 1 , AnflUOI Tuesdoy. Romeo Guust Line. • To approve Related Party Transaction 
General Septemb01 Hotel-Dodo! Plot N<). 3. uls HlB of t11e Companies Ac.t, 2013 
Meellng 27, 2016 Kohinqor Rood. D(lc!Or 

ot I I � 00 A.M. Mumbo l -40!)0 I 4. '-· 
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6. POSTAL BALLOT 

I. During the year under review, viz. in tl1e month of April 201 8; the Company l1ad conducted 
Postal Ballot In accordance with the provisions of Section 1 1  0 of tl1e Companies Act 201 3 
read with l�ule 22 of the Companies (Managemenl and Administration) Rules, 20 1 4. 

The details of the resolution(s) passed bY way of Postal Ballot In respect of the Special 
Resolution passed ore mentioned hereunder: 

r-
Dote of declorolion of Type of Resolution 

Porliculor• of Resolullon tho rcsull of Podol Bollot passed 

To Rollfy lha Equity Shaes Issued pursuml 10 thO Shaeholcters 
lvtoy 7. ?.018 Special Resolunon corlS(:nl rocelved in on Exttaordnory Gene<OI Meeting held on July 

07. ?0 I 7 os per 1he In-principal Approvol recolvod from SSE. 

II. During the year under review. viz. in the month of June 201 8; the Company hod conducted 

Postal Ballot In accordance with t11e provisions of Section 1 1  0 of the Companies Act. 201 3 

read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 201 4. 

The details of the resolution(s) passed by way or Postal Ballot in respect of the Special 
Resolution passed ore mentioned hereunder: 

Dole of declaration ol Type of Resolullon 
Particular. ol Resolullon 

the result of Poslal Bollot paued 

.tuno 30. 2018 Speciol l�fion To ssue Eq._ity Shores on Pleretenliul boSJS to Eligible tnve51ors 

.tune 30. 20 18 Speclol Ro,o;olution Ia I$SU9 Equity Shores on Preferenliol bosis to I he Promoters 

Ill. During the year under review, viz. In the month of December 2018; 'lhe Company had 

conduc·ied Postal Ballot in accordance with the provisions ot Section 1 1 0 of the Companies 
Act. 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014. 

The details of the resolutlon(s) passed by way of Postal Ballot in respect of the Special 

Resolution passed ore mentioned hereunder: 

Dole or declaration of Type of Resolullon 
Particulars ol Resolution lhe rerull of Postal Bolio! po.s$ed 

January 12, 2019 Spacial Resolution 
fo Regularize appointment of Dr Chorldrolr.ant Shoh; I Non-Executive Independent Dlrecl01 of lho Company 

lhe Company had provided Its Members with an E-voting facility 1hrough Cen'lral Depository 
Services [India) Ltd. ("CDS!:') in accordance with the provisions of Sec·llon 108 of 1he 
Companies Act 201 3 read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management and Administration) 
Amendment Rules. 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; In order to 
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enable them to exercise their voting rights by way of electronic means on the resolution(s) 

proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot. 

Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze. Proprietor of M/s Rajendra & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, 

Mumbal; was appointed as a Scrutinizer tor scrutinizing voting (both physical and e·voting) in a 

fair and transparent manner for the Postal Ballot conducted by the Company during the year. 

All the above resolution(s) were passed via the requisite majority. The voting results were 

disseminated to the BSE limited as per the timeline provided in the SEBI (LISting Regulations). 

201 5 and the Companies Act, 201 3. Details of the some ore available on the website of the 
Company at www.fredunaroup.com and also on the website of BSE at www.bselndio.com 

7. MANAGING DIRECTOR I WHOLE TIME DIRECJOR 

Mr. Narlman Medhora was appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company by the 

shareholders of the Company at the 31 st Annual Geneial Meeting of the Company held on 

September 27, 2018 for the period of three years i.e. upto June 4. 2021. 

Mr. Fredun Medhora was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company by the 

shareholders of the Company at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

Seplember28, 201 7 forthepetiodofthreeyeorsl.e. uptoOctober 14, 2020. 

Dr. (Mrs.) D.N. Medhora was appointed as the Joint Managing Director of the Company by the 

shareholders of the Company at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

September 28, 201 7 for the period of three years I.e. upto December 3 1 .  2020. 

As per their terms of appointment the remuneration Comprises of a salary and other benefits 

of Rs. 24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Four Lacs) per annum as salary with Medical Expenses of Rs. 

60,000/· per annum and Leave Travel concession of Rs. 6'0,000/- per annum to Mr. Fredun 

Medhora and Rs. 13.20.000/- (Rupees Thirteen Lakhs Twenty thousand only) per annum as 

salary with Medical Expenses of Rs. 80,000/· per annum and Leave Travel concession of Rs. 
80,000/· per annum to Mr. Nanman Medhora and Rs. 12.00.000/- (Rupees Twelve Lacs) per 

annum as salary with Medical Expenses of Rs. 20.000/- per annum and leave Travel 
concession of Rs. 25.000/- per annum to Dr. (Mrs) Doulat Medhora with authority to the Board 

or too committee thereof to fiX the remuneration within the maximum permissible limtt. 

Service of the Managing Director and the Whole Time Directors may be terminated by either 

party giving the other party two months' notice or the Company paying two months' salary in 

lieu thereof. T11ere are no separate provisions for the payment of severance fees. 
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8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The �; hOW yoorly <:nd ornd 1es<tls or lho 
Compaw 

Al.l the Snorel)(>l<1e,s' inf01moflon 

I ho Quarterly Results. Shorohcldlng Pattem, Quurlortv 
Comptonces and o11 olhol C01porote communlcullon 
O..tng the yea enc'..ed Molc!t 31, 2019 

All mote1ial infcrmotlon tl)(;lud1ng dectara!ion of FlnUI\vK.ll 
l�csulls; P1ess Releases, f>n�sonloflons mode to lnslihJ'ionol 
Analyst or Investors etc. 

Published In N<llionol EngliSh newspope1 <»wei as 
� <l<.txished in ve�nocub' bl!ll�Cl!J"' o1 fle •eglon 
v.hefe ihe Rogslered omce Ollhe C'.()ffl)Ofl'f is siftDed. 
namely 1he l!us:OSSS Standard on<1 Ml.mbal lai(mocteep_ 

Such lnforrr.otlon Is mode uvolloble on the Componv·s 
wob!ilte at www.tre<11 'og'O'IP com vvtlereln there Is o 
roporole dedicated &�clion nomad as 'Investor Relations' 

Filed elecrronlcolly v.iih OSE I!Vough SSE Listing Centre & 
otso pieced co 111<'> website of the Compooy o1 
W\'IW.fredUOO!OlJJ:UXXD 

lhe Company has promptly reported ro 1he Stock 
Excnonge(s) where ShaleS of 1he Company 010 listed. 
VIZ. BSE llmtted ('BSE"), 

S�ICI1 1nformction is also mmuttonequs!y dtsp!oy<,>d on the 

Company's websito ot :te.vw.rredyoqrouo.corn 

�a in rights that a shareholder In the Company enJoys: 

• To transfer 1tle shares. 
• To receive the Shore Certificates upon transfer within the stipulated period prescribed in 

1tleAct. 
• To receive Notice of General Meetings. Annual Report, the Balance Sheet and Profit and 

Loss Account and the Auditor's Report. 
• To appoint proxy to attend and vote atthe General Meetings. 

• To attend and speak in person, at General Meetings. 

• To vote at the General Meeting on show of hands Wherein every shareholder has one 

vote. In case of vote on poll. 1tle number of votes of a shareholder is proportionate to the 

number of Equity Shares held by him. 
• To demand poll along with other Shareholder(s) who collec·llvely holding shares on 

which an aggregate sum of not less than five lakh rupees or are not less 1tlan 1 /1 Oth of 

the total voting power in respect of any resolution. 
• To requisite an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by sharehOlders who 

collectively hOld not less than 1/l Olh of the total paid-up capital of 1tle Company. 
• To move amendments to resolutions proposed at Meetings. 
• To receive Dividend and other Corporate benefits like Rights, Bonus Shares etc. as and 

when declared 1 announced. 
• To Inspect various Registers of the Com pony. 
• To Inspect the Minute Books of General Meetings & to receive copies thereof after 

complying with the procedure prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013. 
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• To appoint or remove Director(s) and Audltor(s) and tilus participate In the management 

through them. 
• 

• 

• 

To proceed against the Company byway of Civil or Criminal Proceedings . 

To apply for the Winding-up of the Company, 

To receive tile residual proceeds upon Wlndlng-up of the Company . 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

a) Annual General Meeting ('�GM"l lor the Financial Year 201 8-19: 

Dividend Payment Date 

I b) St ock Exchanges where he securities of the Comr;�:an'l are listed: 

Name of the stock B<ehange Serlp Code LislirlQ date 

SSE Limited 
Ad!!re": Phlrme Jeejeebt>Oy Jowers. Dalal street. Mumbcl· 400001 . 

539730 Morc:h 2 1 , 2016 

Annual L1st1ng Fees for the FY2018-l 9  has been patd to tile BSE Limited onApnl 30, 2019. 

Names of Depositories in India for dematerlalisalion of Equity Shares - ISIN NO. 

INE194R01017. 

Sr. No Por�cuklrs 
' Nafrooal Securities Depos�ory Llmrfed [NSDLJ ISIN No. INE19�R01 Ol 7 

' Central Depositories Services (lndla)llm�ed [COSLJ ISIN No. INE194R01 01 7 

c) DMdend details: 

The Board has recommended Dividend at the rate of 6.5% on the Equity Shares of tile 

Company at tile Face value of Rs.l 0/- each; for the Financial Year 2018·19 and is put for 

shareholders approval. 

As per tile provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 and rules madethereunderyourCompany 

had paid the dividend as per tile records of the shareholders available with tile Company by I 
on or before the specified date. The amount laying In the Dividend account as undalmed I 
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unpaid dividend was transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account of tile Company and tile list of 

the shareholders (whose dividend is pending) with all the information thereon Is made 

available on tile website of the Company atwww.fredunqroup.com 

d) Market price data-monthlv high-low of the closing price on the BSE during the period 

fromApril2017 to March 20 18 is given below: 

Month High Price Low Price 

e) Performance in comparison of Share price offhe Companywl1h BSE Sensex Is as follows 
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f) Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Aoents: 
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For acknowledgement of transfer deeds and any other documents or for any Grievances I 
Complaints. kindly contact at tile following address: 



Mr. VinayakKarande 

PuNa Shareglstry(lndia) Pvt. Ltd., 
9, ShivShaktl lnd. Estate. J R Bo�cha Marg, 

OffN. M. Joshi Marg, Near Lodha Excel us, 

Lower Pare I (E), Mumbai 40001 1 

Tel No.: 2301 826 1 /2301 6761 

E-mail: buslcomp@vsnl.com 

g) ShareTransferSVstem: 
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The Company's Shares which are in Demat form are transferable through the depository 

system. Shares In physical form are processed by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd., and approved by the Stakeholders Rela11onshlp Committee 

of the Company or authorized officials of the Company. The Share transfers are processed 

within a period of 1 5  days from the date of receipt of the transfer documents by Purva 

Sharegislry(lndia) Pvt. Limited. 

Further, as per the SEBI revised circular on the said matter Physical Shares cannot be 

transferred after March 31, 2019 except in the case of Transmission. Thus, each and every 

shareholder holing shares in Physical form are requested to Dematerialize there shares In 
order to trade in the securities. 

h) DetaitsoiShareholding as on March 31. 201 9: 

1. Distribution ofShareholdtng 
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II. Shareholdlng Pattern as on March 31, 2019 

Ill. Directors Share Holdlng 

I) PledgeofShares: 

No pledge has been created over lhe Equity Shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoter 

Group Shareholders as on March 3 1 .  2019. 

j) Dematerialization of Shares: 

As on March 31, 2019: 38,46,164 Shares (approx. 96.40%) of the total Equity Share Capital of 

the Company are held in dematerialized form with Notional Securities Depository Limited and 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

k) Outstanding GDRS/ ADRS/Warrants/ Convertible Instruments as on March 31, 201 9: 

Tlle company has not Issued any GDRs I ADRs I warrants or any other convertible lnstrument(s). 

I) PlantLocation: 

The Company has the fallowing manufactu�ng and Operating s'1tes: 

Palghar 

14, 15, 1 6Zorablan Industrial Complex. 

Vevoor. Palghor(East) - 401 404, 

Maharoshtra state, INDIA. 



m) Address for Correspondence: 

Ms. Priyanka Chalurvedl 

Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer 

26, Manoj Industrial Premises 

G. D. Ambekar Marg, Wadala 
Mumbai-400031 

Tel. No. +91 224031 81 1 1  

Email id.: prtyanka.chaturvedi@fredungroup.com 

Website: www.fredunqroup.com 

n) Corporate Identity Number (CIN): 
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The Company is registered wltn tne Registrar of Companies Mumbai, Maharashtra. The 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA) Is L24239MH198 7PLC043662. 

10. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES 

During thefinanclalyear 2018-19the Company had Issued the Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0/- each 
under Preferential Basis at Rs. 225/- each to the Eligible Investors and Promoters the details of 

which are listed below: 

a) The COmpany had issued and allotted 5,64,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0/- each at Rs. 
225/- each to the eligible Investors and Promoters. The allotment of the sold shares was 
done on August 1 ,  201 8. 

Out of 5,64,500 Equity Shares 2,25.000 Equity Shares were issued to Promoters against 
the loan amount given by the Promoters to the Company and 3,39,500 Equity Shares 
were Issued to Eligible Investors of the Company. 

Tlle Listing approval for the said issue was received by the Company on August 30, 20 18. 

The sold funds were raised and utmzed by the Company for meeting the expenditures of 
operations, expansion and for other corporate purposes. 

1 1 .  STATUS OF THE COMPLIANCE IN RESPECT OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

a. Chairperson of the Soard: The Executive Chairperson does not maintain any separate 

officeforthe Company. 

b. Remuneration CommiHee: Details are given under the heading "Remuneration 

Committee". 

c. Shareholder's Right: Details are given under the heading "Means of communication", 
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12. Audit Qualifications: 

Duling the year under review, there was no qualification In the Auditor's Report on the 

Company's flnanc·lal statements. 

13. REONCILIATIONAUDIT 

Mr. Rajendra R. Vaze (FCS No. 4847 CP No. 1 975) Practicing Company Secretary have carried 

out Reconciliation Audit to reconcile the total admitted Equity Share Capital with the National 

Securmes Depository Lim"1ted (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (In efta] Limited (CDSL) 

and the Total Issued and Listed Equity Share Capital. lheSecretariaiAudltReportconfirms that 

the Total Issued I Paid-UP Capital Is In agreement with the total number of Shares in physical 

foriTl and the total number of Dematerlallsed Shares held With NSDL and CDSL. 

14. SECRETARIALAUDIT 

Mr. Ra]endra R. Vaze (FCS No. 4847 CP No. 1 975) Practlclng Company Secretary have 

conducted the Secretar1al Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2018 - 2019. Their 

Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under, Listing Agreements wUh the Stock 

Exchange, Listing Regulations, applicable SEBI Regulations and other Laws applicable to the 

Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of the Board's Report. 

15. REQUESTTOSHAREHOLDERS 

Shareholders are requested to follow the general procedure I steps as detailed hereunder 

thus enabling the Company to serve them efficiently and avoid any risks While dealing In the 

securities of the Company: 

• DematofShares: 

Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat I electronic form 

through any of the DPs to avoid any possibility of loss, mutilation etc., of physical share 

certificates and also to ensure safe and speedy transaction In securities. Any Investor who is 

desirous of transferring shares (which are held In physical form) after April 0 1 ,  2019 can do so 

only after the shares are dematerialized, except for transmission (i.e., transfer of title of shares 

by way of lnhelitance I succession) transposition (i.e., re-arrangement I interchanging of the 

order of name of shareholders] cases. 

• Registration of Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandate: 

SEBI has made It mandatory for all Companies to use the bank account details fumlshed by 

the Depositories for payment of Dividend through ECS to investors wherever ECS and bank 

'" 
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details are available. The Company will not entertain any direct request from Members 

holding shares in electronic modefordeletion of I change In such bank details. Members Who 

wish to change such bank account details are tllerefore requested to advise their DPs about 

such change, with complete delailsofbankaccaunt. 

ECS helps in quick remittance of Dividend Wltllout possible loss I delay in postal transit. 

Shareholders, who have not earlier availed tills facility, are requested to register their ECS 

details with the STA or tllelr respective Dps. 

o Consolidation of multiple folios: 

Shareholders, Who have multiple folios In Identical names, are requested to apply for 

consolidation of such folios and send the relevant share certificates to the Company. 

o Registration of Nominations: 

Section 72 oftheAct, 2013 provides facility for making nominations by shareholders in respect 

of tlleir holding of shares. Such nomination greatly facilitates transmission of shares from the 

deceased shareholder to his I her nominee without having to go tllrough the process of 

obtaining succession certificate I probate of the WilL etc. 

It would therefore be In tile best interest of the shareholders holding shares in physical form 

registered as a sole holder to make such nominations. Shareholders, who have not availed 

nomination facility, are requested to avail the same by submitting the nomination In 

Form SH-13. This form will be made available on request. Investors holding shares in demo! 

form are advised to contacttheir DPs for maldng nominations. 

o Updotlon of address: 

Shareholders are requested to update their addresses registered with the Company, directly 

throughtheSTA, to receive all communications promptly. 

Shareholders, holding shares in electronic form, are requested to deal only with their DPs in 

respect of change of address and furnishing bank account number, etc. 

o SMSAierts: 

Shareholders are requested to note that NSDL and CDSL have announced the launch of SMS 

alert facility for demo! account holders whereby shareholders will receive alerts for debits I 
credits (transfers) to their demat accounts a day after the transaction. Tnese alerts will be sent 

to tllose account holders Who have provided tlleir mobile numbers to tllelr DPs. No charge Will 

be levied by NSDL I CDSL on DPs providing til is facilityto investors. Tllls facililyWill be available to 

investors who request for the same and provide tllelr mobile numbers to tile DPs. Further 
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information Is available on the website of NSDL and CDSL namely www.nsdl.co.in and 

www.cdslindla.com 

• TimelyencashmentofDividends: 

Shareholders are requested to en cash their DiVIdends Warrants promptly to avoid hassles of 

revalidation. 

As required by SEBI, shareholders are requested to furnish details of their bank account 

number and name and address of the bank for incorporating the same in the warrants. 

Shareholders are I9C1Uested to note that the Dividends, not claimed for a period of seven 

years from the date they first became due for payment. shall be transferred to IEPF In terms of 

Section 1 24(6) of the Act, 2013 read with Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 201 6. 

Any shareholder who has not encashed the DIVIdendWarranttortheyoor 2016-17 and 201 7-

1 8  are requested to send the Dividend warrantjs) to the Company or to the RTA lor 

revalidation. 

16. OTHER DISCLOSURE 

• Material IV Significant Related Partv Transactions 

There are no transactions of materlal nature other than reported under "Related Party 

Disclosures" that have been entered Into by the CompanywHh the Promoters, Directors, their 

relatives and the Management and In any Company in which they are interested and that 

may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company, 

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy 

Is available on the website of the Company at www. fredungroup.com 

• Code of Conduct for prevention of lnsiderTradlnq 

The Company has duly adopted and have revised and updated Polley on Prevention of 

Insider Trading as required by every Listed Company under Regulation 9(1) of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of lnsiderTrading) Regulations, 2015. 

All the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31 , 201 9: along 

with their Immediate Relatives, have disclosed their Shareholding in the Company and their 

acts are In compliance with the provisions of the sold Code of the Company; The policy is 

available on the website of the Company atwww. fredunaroup.com 
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• Polley on leak of Uncublished Price Sensitive Information 

The Company had formulated and adopted Policies and Procedures for Inquiry In Case of 

Leak of or Suspected Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information under Regulaiion 9A (5) 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) 

Regulations, 201 8. 

me Company endeavour to follow Good COrporate Governance Practices and thus take 

every step to ensure that no unfair trade practices are carried on In the Company or by any 

Personnel of the Company: me policy is available on the website of the Company at 

www.fredungroup.com 

• Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has a duty adopted Whistle Blower Polley and established a Vigil Mechanism In 
line with the proVIsions of SEBI Listing Regulations, 201 5 and Companies Act 2013; which alms 

to provide a mechanism to the employees and Directors of the Company to report instances 

of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of 

Conductor Ethics Polley, 

It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Chairman of 

the Audit Committee during the Financial Year 201 8-19. me policy is available on the website 

of the Company at www. fredungroup.com 

• Code of Conduct of the Comoony 

All the Directors of the Company adhere to the Code of Conduct of the Company In true 

letter and spirit and have given Declaration that they abide by the Code for the year ended 

March 3 1 ,  2019. The policy is available on the website of the Company at 

www.fredungroup.com 

• Policv on Preservation of Documents and Records 

The Company has adopted and adhere to the Polley on Preservation of Documents and 

Records; pursuant to Regulation 9 read with Regulation 30(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

The policy is available on the website of the Company at www. fredungroup.com 

• compliance status 

k; part of Good Corporate Govemance practices all the compliance requirements as per 

sub-para (2) to (1 0) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; have been 

complied with by the Company. 
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• Compliance Certificate 

The Statutory Auditors have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance asst'ipulated in the SEBi list'rng RegulaTion and the same forms part of 

this report, 

Place: Mumbal 

Dale: June 10, 2019 

By Order af the Board 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Sd/­

Priyanka ChaluiVedl 

Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Uncle!' SEBI (listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

To the Members of Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited, 

1 .  We hOve examined the compliance of the condiHons of Corporate Governance by 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited ("the Company") for the year March 3 1 ,  2019 as 
stipulated In relevant Regulations 1 7  to 27 and Regulation .:16 and Para C, D, and E of 

Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5  (hereinafter referred as "SEBI Listing 

Regulations, 2015"). 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is ·ihe responsibility of the 

Company's Management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and 

implementation thereof. adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neltner on Audit nor on expression of on opinion 
on the Financial Statements of the Company. 

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, and the representations mode by the Directors and tne management, we certity 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the SEBI Usl·lng Regulations, 201 5 fort he year ended March 3 1 ,  2019. 

4. We further state that such Compliance is neither an assurance os to the future viability of 
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which tne Management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Rajendra And Co. 

Company Secretaries 

CS. Rajendra R. Vaze 

FCS 4247; CP 1975 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: June 10, 2019 
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TO the Members of FREDUN P�HARMACEUT!CALS LTD. 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

we hove audited the accompanying lnd AS Financial Statements of FREDUN 

PHARMACEUTICAL LTD., (' the Company') which comprise of the Balance Sheet as on 

March 31. 2019; the Statement of Profit and Loss (including comprehensive Income), Cosh 

FlOw Statement and the statement of changes In Equity for the year then ended and 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein 

referred to as "lnd AS Rnanclal Statements"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statement� 

The Company's Boord of Direclors Is responsible for molters stated In Section 1 34(5) of the 

Companies Act. 20 1 3 ["the Act"') with respect to the preparalion of the these lnd AS Financial 

Statements In that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs [financial position). Profit 

[financial performance including comprehensive income), Cash Flows and changes in 

Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

Indio. Including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Sec1ion 133 of the 
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also Includes maintenance 

of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the act for 

safeguarding assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and es1imates that ore reasonable and prudent: and the design, Implementation 

and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls. tMt were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the lnd AS Financial Statements that give o true and fair view 

and ore free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Anancjal Statements 

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these lnd AS Financial Statements based on our 

Audit. 

While conducting the Audit, we hove taken Into account the provisions of the Act. the 

accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be Included in the 

Audit Report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 
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We conducted our Audit In accordance with the standards on Auditing specified under 

Section 143(1 0) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS 
Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. 

An Audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the lnd AS Financial Statements. An Audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as 

evaluating the overall lnd AS Financial Statement presentation. We believe that our Audit 

provides a reasonablebasisforouroplnlon. 

An Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

the disclosures in the lnd AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the �sks of material misstatement of the lnd 

AS Financial Statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the 

Auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view In order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on whether the Company has in place an adequate Internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the Financial Statements. We believethattheAudttevldencewe have 

obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the lnd AS 

Financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our lnfornatlon and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid lnd AS Financial statements give the Information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fairview In conformity With the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India Including the lnd AS. of the state of affairs (financial position) of 

the Company as on March 31,  2019; and Its Profit (financial performance including other 

comprehensive income), its Cash Flow and changes In Equity for the year ended on that 

date. 
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Report on Legal and Rec!ulatorvReauiremenfs 

1 . As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the 

Central Government of India In terms of sub-section ( 1 1 )  of Section 143 oftheAct we give 

in the Annexure I, a statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Further to our comments In the Annexure referred to in paragraph 5 above and as 

required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that; 

(I) We hove sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid 

Financial Statements. 

(Ill In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as required by law have been kept by the 

Company, so far as if appears from our examination of such books. 

(Ill) The Balance Sheet Profit & Loss Account Cosh Flow Statement and the Statement of 

Changes of Equity referred to in this report are In agreement with the books of account 

(lv) In our opinion. the aforesaid lnd AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 'Act read with relevant rules 

Issued thereunder. 

(v) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31 sf March, 

2019; and taken on record byfhe Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors 

of the Company Is disqualified from being appointed as Director under sub section (2) of 

Section 164 of the companies Act, 20 1 3. 

(vi) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in ':Annexure II". 

(vii) With respectto the matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 

1 1  of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201 4; In our opinion ondtothe best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. There are no pending litigations on the financial position of the Company 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for 

Wllich there were any material foreseeable losses. 

Ill, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by Company. 
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iv. The reporting on disclosure relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the 

COmpanytortheyearended 31 March, 2019. 

Place: Mumbal 

Dote: 101hJune, 2019 

For SAVLA & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTeRED ACCOUNTANTS 

FIRM REG. NO� 109361W 

DEEPAK G. SAVLA 
(PARTNER) 

Membership No.: 043901 
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Annexure I to Auditors Report 

The Annexure as referred in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements' of our Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Company on the 

Financial statements, for the year ended 3 1  March, 2019; we report that: 

1 , Fixed Assets 

[a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars Including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(b) During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been 

physically verified by the Management as per the regular programme of ve�flcation 

Which, in our opinion, Is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 

nature of its assets. As Informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verificaTion. 

(c) Ttle title deeds of the Immovable properties are partially held by the Company and 

partially mortgage. Details of the same are attached herewith marked as 'Annexure Ill'. 

2. lnvento�es 

a. The Inventory has been physically verified during the year by the Management. In our 

opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. 

b. On the basis of our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opinion that 

the Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on 

verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material. 

3. Loans Granted 

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, 

Limited liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under 

section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (Ill) (a) to [c) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us. the 

Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013; In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security. 

5. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of directiVes 

Issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies 

Act. 2013 or any other relevant provisions of Companies Act and the Rules framed there 

under. Hence the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015; with regard to the 

deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 
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6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect 

of products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the central 

Government under sub -section (1) of Section 1 48 of the Act and the rules framed there 

under and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the presc�bed accounts and records 

have been maintained. 1-bwever, we have not made detailed examination of cost 

records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

7. Statutory Dtres 

a. According to the records of the Company, the COmpany Is generally regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including Provident 

Fund, Employees' Stale Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of Customs, 

Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to 11. 

b. According to the records oftheCompany, there are no dues of Income Tax of Sales Tax 

or Service Tax or Duty of Customs or Duty of Excise or Value Added Tax, Goods and Service 

tax which has not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

8. Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the 

Management we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted In repayment 

of loans or Borrowing to a Financial Institution, Bank, Government or dues to 

Debentureholders. 

9. The Company has not raised moneys by way of lnltlal Public Offer or Further Public Offer 

(including debt instruments) and term loans were applied for the purposes tor which those 

are raised. 

l 0. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 

out In accordance With the generally accepted auditing pracflces In India, and 

according to the information and explanation given to us, we have neither come across 

instance of material fraud or on the Company by Its officers or employees, noticed or 

reported during the year. nor have we been Informed of any such Instances by the 

Management. 

l l  , According to the information and explanations given by the management the 

managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite 

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 

Companies Act 2013. 

12.  In our opinion and according to the Information and explanatlon given to us, the 

Company is not a chit fund or a nldhl mutual benefit fund I society. Therefore, the 

" 
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provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the Companies (Auditors Reports) Order, 2013 are not 

applicable to the Company. 

13. According to the Information and explanations given by the Management ard based on 
our examinatlon of records of the Company; transaction entered into by the Company 

wtth the Related Parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act Where 

applicable. 

14.  The details of Related Party Transaction have been disclosed In the Financial Statement as 
required under Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 24, Related party Disclosures 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules Issued thereunder. 

15.  Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the 
Management, the Company has made Preferential allotment or Private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures du�ng the year under review. However. the 
details of Preferential allotment of shares have been disclosed In financial statement. 

16.  Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given bY the 

Management we are of the opinion that the Company has not entered into any non­
cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. 

17.  In our opinion. the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and accordingly; the provisions of clause 3 (xvl) of the 
Order ore not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

Place: Mumbal 

Date; 10thJune,2019 

For SAVLA & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FIRM REG. NO - 109361W 

DEEPAK G. SAVLA 

(PARTNER) 

Membership No.: 043901 
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AnneXUre II to Auditors Report 

Report on the Infernal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act. 20 13/"the Act") 

We have Audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of FREDUN 

PHARMACEUTICALS LTD. ("tile Company") as of March 3 1 .  201 9 In conjunction with our audit 

of the Financial Statemoots of tile CompanY for the year ended on tllat date. 

Management's Responslbll!tyfor Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the lntemal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control staled in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities Include the design, 

implementatlon and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were 

operatlng effectiVely for ensuring tile orderly and eff1clent conduct of its business, including 

adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act 201 3. 

Auditors' Responslbllltv 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 1 43(1 0) of tile Companies Act 2013, to tile extent applicable to an 

audit of lntanal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lrd'10. Those Standards and tile 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pertorm tile 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively In all material respects. 

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit eVIdence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

" 
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the risk that a material weakness eXists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, Wllether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls system overfinancial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reoorting 

A Company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( I )  pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial statements In accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Company are being made only In accordance With autho�zatlons of management and 

directors of the company: and [3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorized acqulslllon. use. or disposition of the company's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Umitotions of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the Inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls. material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

n 
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reporting were operating effectively a s  at 3 1  March, 201 9; based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 1 0th June, 20 1 9  

For SAVLA & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FIRM REG. NO - 1 09361 W 

DEEPAK G.  SAVLA 

(PARTNER) 

Membership No. : 043901 
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Annexure I l l  to the Auditors Report 

Details of Fixed Assets mortgage against Loan 

Detail of Plant & Machinery 

Sr. no. Party Name Asset Name 
Rapid mixer granulator -

1 CHAMUNDA PHARMA MACHINERY PVT. LTD. 400 KG 

Mortgage of Plant 
2 & Machinery 

lying at 1 4, 1 5, 1 6  Zorastrian 

Industrial Estate , 

Veeor , Palghar - 401 404 

Detail of Asset on which charge create 

Sr. no. Asset Name 
Factory Land & Building 

1 located 
at 1 4, 1 5, 1 6  at Zorastrian 
Industrial Estate Vee or 
Palghar -401 404 

2 Office Premises 
26-Manoj Industrial Premises 
Co-op. Society Ltd. 

Dr.G.D.Ambekar Marg 

Wadaia , Mumbai - 400 031 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 1 0th June, 20 1 9  

Value Name of Company 

23,1 1 ,875.00 Reliance Capital Ltd 

4,82,00,000.00 The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd 

Value Name of Bank 

1 2,36,00,000.00 The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd 

2,22,00,000.00 The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd 

For SAVLA & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FIRM REG. NO - 1 09361 W  

DEEPAK G. SAVLA 

(PARTNER) 

Membership No. : 043901 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: L24239MH 198 7PLC043662 

Balance sheet for the year ended 31 March, 2019 

!ASSETS 
Non - current assets 
a) Properly, plant and equipment 

b) Capital work In progress 
c) Financial assets 

i) Loans 

li) Olher financial assets 

d) Non - Current Investments 
e) Olher non current assets 

Total non - current assets 
Current assets 
a) Inventories 

b) Financial assets 

i) lnveslments 

II) Trade and other receivables 

Ill) Cash and cash equivalents 

iv) Loans 

�l Other financial assets 

c) Olher current assets 

Total current assets 
TOTAL ASSESTS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

� 
a) Equity share capital 

b) Olher equity 

Total Equity 
Non-Current Liabilities 
a) Provisions 

b) Other non - current liabilities 

c) Defered Tax Liability 

Total non current - liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
a) Financial liabilities 

i) Trade and other payables 

b) Olher current liabilities 

c) Provisions 

d) Current tax liabilities (net) 

Total current liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of 
these Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even dale. 

For Savio & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No - 109361 W 

Deepak G. Savio 

Partner 
Membership No - 043901 

Place - Mumbai 
Date :- June 10,  2019 

Notes lAs at 31 March 2019 As at 3 March 20 8 

3 31 .35,37.737.28 1 6.28,24,01 3 . 1 2  

- 1 1 . 1 4,97.653 . 1 9  

4 56,3 7. 926.46 35,22. 792.00 

5 27,600.00 2,600.00 

6 47,00,000.00 -
32,39 ,03,263. 7 4 27,78,47,058.31 

7 40,78,00,520.00 1 8.42.53,829.86 

8 30.000.00 -
9 1 7. 78.20.947.49 1 5,25.92.438.22 

1 0  1 .46,67.264.81 1 .45.32,880.88 

1 1  1 2,84,876.41 8,56,81 2 .61 

1 2  4,01 ,873.34 7,76,99,648.73 

1 3  1 2.31 ,86.755.56 8.48,66,200.24 

72,51 ,92,237.61 51 .48,01 , 8 1 0 .54 

1 ,04,90,95,501 .35 79,26,48,868.85 

1 4  3,98,96,346.00 3,42,51 ,346.00 

1 5  34,99,95.743.31 1 8, 73. 75,722.55 

38,98,92,089.31 22,1 6,27,068.55 

1 6  1 7,25.78,6 1 4 . 1 3  3,25,1 3.424.33 

1 7  9,69,46,489.87 9,89, 99,957.65 

79,1 8.41 6.00 80,89,594.00 

27,74,43,520.00 1 3,96,02,975.98 

1 8  33,70.44,204.98 38,92.08,981 .63 

1 9  54,69.977.00 1 ,33,25,087. 1 3  

20 1 . 79.01.252.06 1 ,60, 1 9. 7 1 7.56 

21 2 , 1 3.44.458.00 1 ,28,65,038.00 

38, 1 7 ,59,892.04 43, 14,1 8,824.32 

1 ,04,90,95,501 .35 79,26,48,868.85 
2 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Fredun 
Pharmaceuticals Limited 
CIN No - L24239MH1987PLC043662 
For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Dr. (Mrs) Daulat N. Medhora 

Chairperson & Jt. Managing 
Director 
DIN : 01 745277 

Ms. Prlyanka Chalurvedl 

Mr. Fredun Medhora 

Managing Director & 
CFO 
DIN :01 745348 

Company Secretray Cum Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A5591 7 75 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: l24239MH1987PLC043662 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019 
r--

� Revenue 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating Revenue 
Other Income 
Total Income 

II Exoenses 

Cost of mofellols consumed -
Purchases Stock In Trade 
Changes In lnvenloJies of Jaw mofellols. pocking maleJiols, 
stock In trade and wo1k in prog1ess 
MonufoctUJing & Service Cost 
Employee benefit Exp. 
Finance Cost 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Operating and other expenses 
Payment to AudltOJs 
lmpOJirement loss I (reversal) 
Total Expenses 

Ill Profit before exceptional Items and tax 

Exceptional items 

IV Profit before tax from continuing oeeralions 

v ax Expenses: 
CuuentTax 
Defeued Tax 

VI Profit for the year from continuing operations 

� Profit before tax from discontinued operations 

VIII ax expenses of discontinued operations 
IX Profit for the year from discontinued operations 

X Net Profit for the year 

XI Other Comprehensive Income 

A Items that will not be classified to profit and loss 

B 
XII 

XIII 

I) Remeasurement of post - employement benefit !obligations 
II) Income lax related to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit and loss 
Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 1 0/- each) 

E01nlng per equity share of continuing operations 
Basic and diluted [In Rs.J. 
E01nlng per equity share of discontulned operations 
Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 
E01nlng per equity share of continuing and discontuined 
operations 
Basic and diluted lin Rs.) 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these 
Financial Statements 

As per our attached report ol even dote. 

For Savio & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No - 1 09361W 

Deepak G. Savio 

Partner 

Membership No - 043901 

Place - Mumbal 

Dale :- June 10, 2019 

Notes As at 31 March, 2019 As at 3 1  March, 201 8  

22 95,40. 72.440.31 58,06.72.643.75 

23 1 ,60,84,435. 75 1.4 7.97.292.80 

24 38,72.721.01 1 6,38,455.29 

97.40.29,597.07 59.71 ,08,391 .84 

25 65,95.82,1 35.35 42.97. 70.400.47 

26 - -

27 -6.08.03.821.80 -3,46,66.813.89 

28 4,22.48.638.56 2,67,61.650.40 

29 8,04,03,080.66 5, 1 8. 76. 1 00.59 

30 3,09,62,289. 1 5  1.93,74,71 3.05 

31 1 .33,00, 91 7.00 1 ,28,50, 1 05.54 

32 14.59,68.077.52 6,39, 7 4.832. 7 6 

7,50,000.00 7.50,000.00 

91 ,24, 1 1 ,31 6.44 57,06,90,988.92 

6.16, 1 8,280.63 2,64, 1 7,402.92 

- -
6, 16.1 8.280.63 2,64, 1 7,402.92 

1 . 7 1  ,89,000.00 93,00,000.00 

1 .71  ' 1 78.00 -3,91,976.00 

4,46,00,458.63 1 '75,09,378.92 

-

4,46,00,458.63 1 , 75,09,378.92 

-

-

-

33 

1 1 .59 6.07 

-

1 1 .59 6.07 

2 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

CIN No - L24239MH1987PLC043662 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Dr. (Mrs) Oaulal N. Medhora 

Chairperson & Jl. Managing 
Director 

DIN : 01 745277 

Ms. Prlyanka Chalurvedl 

Mr. Fredun Medhora 

Managing Director & 
CFO 

DIN :01 745348 

Company Secretray Cum Compliance Officer 

Membership No.: A559 1 7  76 



Fredun PhorrncJCHuL::ols L!d Annual Report 2018·2019 

FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: l2t12J9MH 1987PlCOIIJ(I{I2 

Notes to financial statemenfs for the year ended 31/03/2019 

Note-3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description Freehold Land Buildings 
Plont and Computer I 

Machinery Hardware 

Gross Block 

Bolonce osa1 01 .April. 201 7 52.35,279.00 5.53.32.124.82 9,99.91.242.30 38,45,319.72 

AddiiiOns 3,48,548.00 1 ,00, 77,754.00 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31 March, 2018 52,35,279.00 5,56,80,672.82 1 1  ,00,68, 996.30 38,45,319.72 

Gross Block 

Balance as ot 01 April, 201 8 52,35,279.00 5.56,80.672.82 I I  ,00.68,996.30 38,45,319. 72 

AddiHons 14,82,54.150.94 1 .  16.05.830.00 3,38,467.00 

Disposals 

Dalance as at 31 March, 2019 52.35,279.00 20,39 ,34,823. 76 12,16,74,826.30 41,83,786.72 

Accumulated Depreclatlon 

@alonce as at o 1 April, -201 7 1 ,48,54,397 .43 3.70.91 ,230.23 27,23,782.32 

Depraclation for the yeor 1 8 , 7 1 .254. 1 2  40,67,699.68 5,52,&90.65 

Balance as at 31 March, 2018 1,67,25,651 .54 4, 1 1 ,58,929.92 32.76,472.98 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance as at 01 Aprll, 2018 1.67.25.651.54 4,11,58,929.92 32,76,472.98 

OepreciOIIon IO!tl'.e yeor 1 8.82,172.15 45,53.883.22 4,4 t .438.46 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 1,86,07 ,823.69 4,57,12,813.14 37,17.911.43 

Net Bloack value as at 01 March 
52,35;279 .00 3,89,55,021.28 6,89,10,066.38 5,68, 846.7 4 

2018 

Net Bloack value as at 01 March 
52.35,279.00 18,53,27,000.07 7,59,62,013.15 4,65,875.28 

2019 

77 



Note-3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description 

Gross Block 

Balance os at 01 April, 201 7 
Additions 
Dtsposols 
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 

Gross Block 

Balanceasol 01 AptiL 2018 
Additions 
Disposals 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 

Accumulated Depreciation 

BolollCe as ot 01 Apri, 201 7 
Oepieciolion for 100 year 
Balance as at 31 March, 201 8 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance os ot 01 April. 201 8 
OeprecioiJon for lhe yea1 

Balance as at 31 March. 2019 

Net 81oack value as at 01 
March 2018 

Net Bloack value as at 01 
March 2019 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
cn<t: U.t2)�Mii 1981PlC04ll661 

Noles to financial statements tor the year ended 31/03/2019 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

1,42,61.229.17 
13,37.878.00 

1,55,99,107.17 

1,55,99,107.17 
5,28,500.00 

1 .61 ,27,607.1 7 

48.50,873.64 
12.65.864.1 8  

61,16,737.82 

61.16,737.82 
13,15.578.43 

74,32,316.25 

94,82,369.35 

86,95,290.92 

Factory 
Equipment 

7.82.568.00 

1,10.557.00 

8,93,125.00 

8, 93,1 ?5.00 

8,93,125.00 

4.27,956.90 
I ,08.236.09 

5,36,192.98 

5,36,192.98 
95.836.79 

6,32,029.78 

3,56,932.02 

2,61.095.22 

Etectr1cal Electrical 
Fl111ngs Installation 

30,74,786.19 2. 71 '75,586.06 
2.78.300.00 

33,53,086. 1 9  2 ,  7'1 '75,586.06 

33,53,086.19 2,71,75,586.06 

33,53,086.19 2.71.75,586.06 

1 1 ,03,288.14 58,92,368.73 
�50.441.16 26. 1 2,655. 16 

13,53,729.30 85,05,023.89 

13,53.729.30 85,05,023.89 
2.58,072.31 25,59,877.93_ 

16,11,801.62 1,1  0,64,901 .82 

19,99,356.88 1,86.70,562.1 7  

17.41 ,284.57 1 ,61 , 10,684.24 

78 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
Clft. U42J9MII19lJ7PlC043662 

Notes to financial statements lor lhe year ended 31/03/2019 

Nole • 3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description Lab Glassware MolorCor Office Premises Office Equipment 

Gross Block 

Bolo nco as at 01 April, 201 7 48,56,197.93 98,85.928.00 97.82.046.00 5,86.212.00 

Additions f\0,000.00 
Disposals 

Balance as at 31 March, 201 8 49,36,197.93 98,85,928.00 97,82,046.00 5,86,212.00 

Gross Bloc!< 

Balance os at 01 April. 201 8 49,36. 197.93 98,85, 928.00 97.82.0�6.00 5.86. 2 1 2.00 
Addilions 1 2.25.000.00 7.95.043.00 
Disposals 

Balance as at 3 1  March, 2019 61,61 '1 97.93 1 ,06,80,971.00 97,82,046.00 5,86,212.00 

Accumuloled Depreciation 

Balance as at 01 April. 2017 12, 95,7 30.87 16,65.749.54 21,29,227.63 3.1 7.739.82 

Depreciation for lhe year 3.78.690.30 10.60.918.22 4,05.078. 78 59,122.39 

Balance as at 31 March, 2018 16,74,42 1 . 1 7  27,26.66 7.7 6 25,34,306.41 3, 76,862.21 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance os at 01 April. 20 1 8  16.74.421 . 1 7  27.26,667.76 25.34,306..<11 3. 7 6,862.21 
Depreclalion for tho year 4,67,532. 1 3  _ 1 0.3'1 .67 4.82 4,05,078. 78 59,122.39 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 21,41,953.29 37,58,342.58 29,39 ,385.18 4,35,984.60 

Net Bloack value as at 01 March 32.61,776.76 71 ,59,260.24 72,47,739.59 2,09,349.79 
2018 

Net Bloack volue as at 01 March 
40,19,244.64 69,22,628.42 68,42,660.82 1,50,227.41 

2019 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 

Notes to financial statements for the ye�:u ended 31/03/201 9 

� - l  

Properly, plant and equipment 

Description Computer Software Electronic Devices Total 

Gross Block 

Balance os ot 0 1 APril, 201 7 23.45.215.65 23,71.5.1.734.83 
Additions 5,64,910.00 1.27,97,947.00 
Disposals 

Balance as at 31 March, 2018 23,45,215.66 5,64,910.00 24,99,51 ,681 .83 

Gross Block 

Balance os ot 01 April, 2018 23.45.215.65 5,64,910.00 24.99,51,681.83 
Addlions 2.00.800.00 10.66,850.00 16.40.14.640.94 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 25,46,015.66 16,31,760.00 41 ,39,66,322. 77 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance os at 01 April, 201 7 19,25.217.92 7,42.77.563 . 1 7  

Depreciolion tor the year 1,67.611.16 119,643.63 1 ,28,50. 105.54 

Balance as at 31 March, 2018 20,92,829. 1 0 49,843.63 8,71,27,668.71 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance as of 01 April. 201 8 20.92,829.10 49,843.63 8, 71 ,27,668. 71 
Depreciation ror file year 1.79, I 09.04 51.542. 1 6 1 ,33,00,9 18.61 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 22,71,938.14 1 ,01 ,385.80 10,04,28,587.32 

Net 81oack value as at 01 
2,52,386.55 5,15,066.37 16,28,24,013.12 

March 2018 

Net 61oacl< value as at 01 2, 7 4,077.61 15,30,3 74.20 31 ,35,37,737.28 
March 2019 

[The Cap�ol Work In Progress as shOwn on 31.03.2018 was Rs. 1 1 ,  14,97.653.1 9/·. However, ltlo 
work wos completed In cutrent yeor ond same asset 11as been gtouped under Building but 

company has not claimed depreciation on said ossel as the asset Is sllll not put to use and OC 

copy of asset Is still not received ) 

80 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662 

CASH FlOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH. 2019 

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

NET PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 

ADJUSTMENTS FOR : 

DEPRECIATION 

INTEREST PAID 

INTEREST RECEIVED 

CREDITORS WRITTEN BACK 

ADJUSTMENT TO OPERATING PROFIT 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

DEFFERED TAX LlA.BILITY 

ADJUSTMENT FOR PROPOSED DIVIDEND TAX 

ADJUSTMENT FOR TAX PROVISION 

15  

3 

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN :-

INVENTORY 7 

INVESTMENTS 8 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 9 

LOANS & ADVANCES I I  
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1 3  

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 1 2  

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 4 

TRADE PAYABLES 1 8  

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 1 9  

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

OTHER NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 5 

SHORT TERM PROVISION 20 

PROVISION FOR TAX 21  

RESERVES & SURPLUS 1 5  

SHARE PREMIUM (RESERVES & SURPLUS) 1 5  

F.Y. 2018-2019 F.Y. 2017-2018 

4,46,00,458.63 I ,75,09,378.92 

I ,33,00,91 7.00 I ,28,50, I 05.54 

3,09,62,289.1 5  1 ,56,77,801 .00 

(4,94,547.33) (4,00, 71 7.00) 

[55,63,845.83) (1 0,46,750.00] 

3,82,04,81 2.99 2, 70,80,439.54 

8,28,05,271 .62 4,45,89,818.46 

[ 1 ,7 1 , 1 78.00] (3,91 ,976.00] 

8,26,34,093.62 4,41, 97,842.46 

(22,35,46,690. 1 4] ( I I  ,48,88, 196.55] 

(30,000.00] 

(2,52,28,509.27) 5, 1 2, I 0,134.19 

(4,28,063.80] ( 1 ,73,587 . 1 1 ]  

(3,83,20,555.32] (4,01 ,92,997.60) 

7,72,97,775.39 (5, 1 2,93,097 .02] 

[21 , 1 5, 134.46] [21 ,432.00] 

(5,21 ,64,776.65) 1 6,09,35,457.78 

(78,55, 1 1 0. 1 3] (2,97,56,675. 1 6] 

(25,000.00) 

1 8,81 ,534.50 21 ,08,833.36 

84,79,420.00 50,63,1 00.00 

(33,47,937.87) (43,92,659.30) 

1 2, 1 3,67,500.00 (1 4,40,35,547.75] 1 5,01 ,82,854.00 1 2,87,81 ,734.59 

(6, 1 4,01 ,454. 1 3) 1 7,29,79,577.05 

8 1  



INCREASE I DECREASE IN :­

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 

LONG TERM PROVISIONS 

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Annual Report 2018-20 1 9  

(6, 1 4,01 A54. 13) 1 7,29,79,577.05 

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN NON CURRENT ITEMS 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 6
----------�14�7�,0�0,0�0�0.�00�) ________________ __ 

NET ADJUSTED CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
(6,6 ] ,01 ,454, 1 3) 1 7,29,79,577.05 

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

PURCHASE Of FIXED ASSETS 3 (1 6,40, 14,641 ' 1 6) (1 ,27,97,945.60) 

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 3 1 1 ,1 4,97,653 . 19  (6,93,36, 1 54.00) 

(5,25, 1 6,987,97) (8,2] ,34,099.60) 

( 1 1  ,86, 1 8,442, 10) 9,08,45,477.45 

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL 1 4  56,45,000.00 (1 ,42,72,654.00) 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN LONG TERM BORROWINGS 1 6  1 4,00,65,1 89.80 (4,26,89,298.83) 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 1 7  (20,53,467,78) (1 ,26,25,051 . 1 1 )  

INTEREST RECEIVED 4,94,547,33 4,00,7 17 .00 

INTEREST PAID (3,09,62,289. 1 5) (1 ,56,77,801 .00) 

CREDITORS WRilTEN BACK 55,63,845.83 1 0,46,750.00 

1 1 ,87,52,826.03 (8,38, 1 7,337.94) 

NET INCREASE I DECREASE IN CASH 1 ,34,383.93 70,28,1 39.51 

OPENING CASH & BANK BALANCE 1 ,45,32,880.88 75,04,741.37 

CLOSING CASH & BANK BALANCE 1 0  ] ,46,67,264.81 1 ,45,32,880.88 

Note:-

1 . The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard -
3 on "Cash Flow Statement". 

2 .  Cash & cash equivalents consist of cash, cheques and stamps on hand and with collecting agents and 
balances with scheduled and other banks on current and deposit accounts. 

3.  Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and not bifurcated between investing and 
financing activities. 

4 .  Figures in  Negative sign indicate cash outflow. 
5.  Previous year figures have been regrouped & recast wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's 

classification. 
6. The notes referred to in the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Nc. form an integral part of the cash Flow Statement. 
7 .  Reserves & Surplus Includes Provision for Dividend I Equity & Preference ) and Provision for Dividend Tax 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2019 

Particulars As at 3 1  March, As at 31 March, 
201 9 201 8 

Note - 4 
Other financial assets 
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated 

Security Deposits 
Considered good 56,37,926.46 35,22, 792.00 
Considered doubtful - -
Less:- Allowance for doubtful deposits - -

Total 56,37,926.46 35,22,792.00 

Note - 5 

Non Current Investments 
260 Equity shares of SVC Bank of Face Rs. l 0/- Each 2,600.00 2,600.00 
2500 Equity shares of Saraswat Bank of Face Rs. l 0/- Each 25,000.00 -
Total 27,600.00 . 2,600.00 
Note - 6 
Other Non Current assets 
Capital advances 47,00,000.00 0.00 
Total 47,00,000.00 0.00 

Note - 7 
Inventories 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 
Raw materials 21 ,33,84,662.00 7,63,52,931 .04 
Packing materials 7,32,46,762.00 4,64, 77,041 .62 
Work in prowess 6,36,56, 778.00 5, 1 2,47,758.00 
Finished product 5,75, 1 2,31 8.00 81  ,05,209.20 
MEIS License 0.00 1 0, 1 2,307.00 
Stores and spares 0.00 1 0,58,583.00 
Total 40,78,00,520.00 1 8,42,53,829.86 

Note - 8 
Investments 
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss) 
Investment in mutual funds (unquoated) 
2 1 3.356 units [31 March, 201 8: Nil Units) of lnvesco-lndia Multicap Fund 1 0,000.00 0.00 
250.035 units (31 March, 201 8: Nil Units) of Reliance-Small Cap Fund 1 0,000.00 0.00 
1 1 8.442 units {31 March, 201 8: Nil Units) of Sundaram-Smail Cap Fund 1 0,000.00 0.00 

Total 30,000.00 0.00 
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 

Note - 9 

Trade receivables 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivable Less Than Six Months 1 2,52,80,407,20 1 0,68,85,809.99 

Trade Receivable More Than Six Months 5,25,40,540.29 4,57,06,628.23 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts 0.00 0.00 
Total 1 7,78,20,947.49 1 5,25,92,438.22 

. 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: l24239MH1987PLC043662 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/201 9  

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 
2019 201 8 

Note - 1 0  

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash 80,92,728.05 78,05,904.73 
Balance with Bonks 

In current accounts 1 5,97,506.42 1 0,66,368. 1 4 
In Deposit Account 49,77,030.34 56,60,608.01 

Total 1 ,46,67 ,264.81 1 ,45,32,880.88 

Note - 1 1  

Loans (Short term) 
Loons to employees 9, 1 2, 1 1 9.30 3,01 ,51 9.50 
Others 3,72,757. 1 1  5,55,293 . 1 1 

Total 1 2,84,876.41 8,56,81 2.61 

Note - 1 2  

Other financial assets 
Other receivables 

Advance to Creditors 0 7 ,59,86, 1 22,32 
From others 4,01 ,873.34 1 7, 1 3,526.41 

Total 4,01 ,873,34 7,76,99,648.73 

Note - 1 3  

Other current assets 
Receivable from Phormo Export Promotion Council 1 5,41 3.00 1 ,06,358.00 
Duly Draw Bock Receivable 40,73,473. 1 8  2 1 , 1 0,762. 1 8  
Central Excise P.L.A. 1 ,2 1 ,241 .00 1 ,2 1 ,241 .00 
Central Excise Refund Receivable 7,45,361 .00 
Other current Assets 5,87,88 1 .08 

GST Receivable 1 0, 1 9,41 ,024.55 6,4 7,3 1 , 1 64.08 
VAT Receivable 1 ,03,5 7,291 .72 1 ,30,39,31 6.95 
TDS Receivable 60,90,431 .03 40, 1 1 ,997.03 

Total 1 2,31 ,86,755.56 8,48,66,200.24 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS lTD 
CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662 

Notes to linancial statements tor the year ended 31/03/2019 

Particulars As at 3 1  March, As at 31 March, 
2019 2018 

Note - 1 4  
Equity share capital 
Authorised Capital 
1 ,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0  each 1 0.00,00,000.00 1 0,00,00,000.00 
Issued subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 
139.89.634 (31 March, 201 8  34251351 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,98,96,346.00 3,42,51 ,346.00 

a) Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

Paticulars As at 31 March, 2019 - As at 31 March, 201 8  

Number Amount Number Amount 
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 34,25,1 35.00 3,42,51 ,346.00 23,52,400.00 2,35,24.000.00 
Add - Further Issue 5,64,500.00 56,45,000.00 1 0,72,734.60 1 ,07,27.346.00 
Number of equity shares ot the end of the year 39,89,635.00 3,98,96,346.00 34,25, 1 34.00 3,42,51 .346.00 

(b) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares. Accordingly, all Equity Shares rank equally with regard to Dividends and share In the 
Company's residual assets. The Equity Shares are entitlled to received Dividend as declared from time to time. The votings rights of an 
Equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid - up Equity Capital of the Company. Voting 
rights cannot be excercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay 
any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares wlll 
be entitled to received the residual assets of the Company, remaning after distribution of all Preferential amounts in proportion to the 
number of Equity Shares held 

c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares I I 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2019 As at 3 1  March, 2018 
Number Percentage Number Percentage 

Dr. Mrs Daulat N. Medhora 1 3 ,40,710.00 33.60% 1 3 ,40, 7 1 0.00 39.14% 
Mr. Narlman B. Medhora 5,75,300.00 1 4.42% 3,74,300.00 10.93% 
Mr. Nlkhll Vora 2,33,333.00 5.85% 2,33,333.00 6.8 1 %  

Particulars 
As at 3 1  March, As at 3 1  March, 
201 9  2018 

Note - 1 5  
Other Equity 
Reserves and Surplus 
Securities premium account 27,1 5,50,354.00 1 5,01 ,82,854.00 
Retained earnings 3,38,44,930.68 1 ,94,61 ,989.63 

Profit & Loss Account 4,51 .36.968.85 
Less : Provision for Dividend Tax 1 9,70,733.87 

Provision for Equity Dividend 60,59,783.76 
Provision for Preference Dividend 32,61 ,520.54 1 ,  1 2,92,038. 1 7  

Profit for the Period 4,46,00,458.63 1 ,75,09,378.92 
Forefited Equity Share Capital 2,21 ,500.00 

Total 34,99,95,743.31 1 8,73,75,722.55 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662 

Notes to financial statements tor fhe year ended 3 1/03/201 9  

Particulars 
As at 3 1  March, As at 31 March, 

2019 201 8  
Note - 1 6  
Long term provisions 

Long Term Loan 1 6, 1 7.43,1 74.13 2.73.64,240.33 
Provisions for employee benfits:-

Provisions for Gratuity 76,87,948.00 50,38,286.00 
Provisions for Compensated Absences 31 .47.492.00 1 . 1 0,898.00 

Total 1 7,25,78,6 1 4 . 1 3  3,25, 1 3.424.33 

Note - 1 7  
Other non - current liabilities 
Short Term Borrowings 

The Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd. I CC Account 1 6,95,87,578.85 
lndusind Bank ltd I PCFCRI 4,64,92,289.28 
lnduslnd Bank ltd 1 CC Account I 1 ,78,06, 1 69.89 
SVC Bank Ltd 49,62,207.05 
lndusind Bank Ltd I PSDLI 32,32,697.39 
Short term loan 2.73.58,91 1 .02 2,65,06,594.04 

Total 9,69,46.489.87 9,89,99,957.65 

Note - 1 8 
Trade payables 
!Acceptances 
Total outstandinQ dues of micro and small enterprise (Refer Note - 4 1 1  - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise 33.70.44.204.98 38,92,08,981 .63 
Total 33.70.44.204.98 38,92,08,981 .63 

Note - 1 9 
Other current liabilities 
Advance from customers 
Other Payables 1 ,03.456.00 1 ,01 ,69,550. 1 3  
Payables towards statutoiY dues 

ESIC 1 ,66,61 2.00 68.479.00 
GST RCM Payable 1 8,51 2.00 5,02,675.00 
Providend Fund 5.44,006.00 2,08,730.00 
Tax Deducted at Source 45,98,501 .00 23.75,653.00 
Employees Professional Tax 38,890.00 

Total 54,69, 977.00 1 ,33,25,087 . 1 3  

Note - 20 
Short term Provisions 
Provisions for employee benfits:-

Provisions for Compensated Absences 
Provisions for other employee benefits 85,1 6.459.00 58,27, 1 1 6.00 
Provision for DDT Equity Shares 22.79,333.87 1 7.46,1 59.00 
Provision for Proposed Dividend 1 Equity I 23,54.732.1 9  53,63.497.30 
Director's Remuneration Payable 2.72.560.00 -

Other provisions 44,78,1 67.00 30,82,945.26 
Total 1 .79,01.252.06 1 .60, 1 9.71 7 .56 

Note - 21 
Current tax liabilities 
Provision tor tax 2, 1 3.44.458.00 1 ,28,65,038.00 
Total 2, 1 3.44.458.00 1 ,28,65,038.00 
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Note (a): Egultv Share Capital !Refer note • 1 4  ) 

Particulars 
As at 01 April, 201 7 

Changes in Equity Share Capital 
during the year 

As at 31 March, 2018 

As at 01 April, 2018 

Changes in Equity Share Capital 
during the year 

VIs at 31 March, 201 9 

Amount 
2,35,24,000.00 

l ,07,27,346.00 

3,42,51 ,346.00 

3,42,51 ,346.00 

56,45,000.00 

3,98,96,346.00 

Note !b): Other equitv !Refer note • 1 5  ) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 0 I April, 201 7 
Profit for the year 

Premium far the year 

Forfieted shares Amount 

Other comprehensive income for the 
year 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year 
Dividend 

Dividend distribution tax 

Balance as at 31  March, 2018 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the 
year 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year 
Dividend 

Dividend distribution tax 

Forfieted shares amount treated as 
income for the year 

Balance as at 31 March, 2019 

Nature and purpose of reserves :· 

Capital Reserve 
Securities 
Premium 

1 5,01 ,82,854.00 

1 2, 1 3,67,500.00 

12,1 3,67,500.00 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Annual Report 201 8-201 9 

FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

General 
Reserve 

CIN: l24239MH1987PLC043662 

Retained 
Earnings 

2,76,27,589.93 

1 , 75,09,378.92 

-67,28,041 .30 
-1 4,37,559.00 

3,69,71 ,368.55 

4,46,00,458.63 

-25,93,263.00 

-5,33,1 7  4.87 

Total 

2,76,27,589.93 

1 ,75,09,378.92 

1 5,01 ,82,854.00 

2,21,500.00 

-67,28,041 .30 

-14,37,559.00 
1 8,73,75,722.55 
4,46,00,458.63 

1 2, 13 ,67,500.00 

-25,93,263.00 

-5,33, 1 7  4.87 

-2,21 ,500.00 

7,84,45,389.31 34,99,95,743.31 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: l24239MH1987PlC043662 

Securities Premium 
Securities Premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares which is utilised in accordance with the provisions of The 
Companies Act, 201 3  

General Reserve 
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer protits from retained earnings for appropritation purposes. As the General reserve is 
created by transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other cpmprehensive income, items included in the 
General reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of Protit and Loss. 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes. 

As per our attached report of even 
date. 

For Savla & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number · 1 09361W 

Deepak Savla 
Partner 
Membership No 043901 

Mumbai 
Date : ·  June 1 0, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Fredun 
Pharmaceuticals Limited 
CIN No · l24239MH1987PLC043662 
For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Dr. (Mrs) Daulat N. Medhora 
Chairperson & Jt. Managing Director 
DIN : 01 745277 

Ms. Priyanka Chaturvedi 
Company Secretray Cum Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A5591 7  

Mr. Nariman B. Medhora 
Director 
DIN :02060357 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3 1 /03/201 9  

Particulars As at 3 1  March, As at 31 March, 
201 9  201 8  

Note - 22 

Revenue from operations 

Sale of finished qoods 95,40, 72,440.31  58,06, 72,643.75 

Other operatina revenue 0.00 0.00 

Total 95,40, 72,440.31  58,06, 72,643 . 75 

Note - 23 

Other operating revenue:-

Duty drawback on exports 7 1 ,28,388.00 34, 7 1 ,888.48 

ME IS License sale 1 9,65,697.00 1 ,02,24, 7 46. 1 9  

Rent Received 1 1  ,55,000.00 0.00 

Sundry Creditor's Written off 55,63,845.83 1 0,46, 7 50.00 

Sundry Income 2,71 ,504.92 53,908 . 1 3  

Total 1 ,60,84,435. 75 1 ,47,97,292.80 

Note - 24 

Other Income 

Interest on:-
Interest Income 494547.33 4,00, 7 1 6. 93 

Dividend Received 0.00 55,000.00 

Dividend Income 0.00 300.00 

Mise . Other Income 0.00 6,270.97 

Net gain 1 loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations -1 9,63,048 . 1 1 1 1 ,76,1 67.39 

Provisions no longer required written back 

Provision for Doubtful Debts Recovered 29, 1 9,304.85 0.00 

Miscellaneous income 24,21 ,91 6.94 0.00 

Total 38,72, 7 2 1  .01 1 6,38,455.29 

Note - 25 

Cost of material consumed 
Material Consumed 65,95,82, 1 35.35 42,97,70,400.47 

Total 65, 95,82,1 35.35 42,97,70,400.47 

Note - 26 

Purchase stock in trade 0.00 0.00 

Total 0.00 0.00 
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Note - 27 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 
and work in progress 

Opening stock 

Finished goods I stock in trade 8 1 ,05,209.20 70,35,849.00 

Work in proqress 5,1 2,47,758.00 1 ,86,62,61 1 .31 

MEIS License 1 0, 1 2,307.00 0.00 

Closing stock 

Finished goods I stock in trade 5,75, 1 2,3 1 8.00 8 1 ,05,209.20 

Work in proqress 6,36,56, 778.00 5, 1 2,47,758.00 

MEIS License 0.00 1 0, 1 2,307.00 

Total -6,08,03,821 .80 -3,46,66, 8 1 3.89 

Note - 28 

Manufacturing & Service Cost 

Clearing & Forwarding Exp Inward 50,402.00 1 ,50, 954.00 

Electricily Expenses Factory 2,65,24, 1 70.00 1 ,50,56,556.50 

Factory Expenses 7,47,490.00 43,02,988.00 

Fire Safely Expenses 0.00 42,380.00 

Freight Inward 5,29,395.45 1 ,29,970.00 

Lab Chemical Expenses 9,69,62 7 . 25 4,90,543.67 

Labour Charqes Expenses 46,37,91 1 .40 1 0,56,287.00 

Light Diesel Oil Purchase 6,38, 996.7 6 3,37,000.00 

Machinery Spares & Taos Exp. 29,65, 1 7 7 .64 0.00 

Rent Plant & Machinery 8,68,000.00 32,86,273.49 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 33,60,424. 93 8,61 ,073.20 

Testing & Analytical Expenses 5,61 ,486 . 1 3  3,01 ,828.00 

Transport Expenses Inward 64,860.00 7,36,699.04 

Loading & Unloading Expenses 3,30,697.00 2,250.00 

Blocks & Desiqninq {At Workl 0.00 6,847.50 

Total 4,22,48,638.56 2,67,61 ,650.40 
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Note - 29 

Employee benefit expenses 

Gratuity 

Labour Welfare Fund Employers Contribution 

Bonus Expense 

Medical Expenses 

P F Administration Charges 

ESIC 

P F Employers Contribution 

P F Employees Contribution 

Salary Wages and Bonus 

Staff Welfare 

Total 

Note - 30 

Finance Cost 

Bank Charges 

Bank Interest 

Interest Expense 

Other Finance Charges 

Total 

Note - 3 1  

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Total 

Note - 32 

Operating and other expenses 

Agency Expenses 

Air Freight 

Books & Periodicals 

Baddebts Written Off 

Business promotion expenses 

Computer Software Expenses 

Computer Expenses 

Conveyance Expenses 

Courier charges 

Catering Charges 

Clearing & Forwarding Exp Outward 

Commission expenses 

Consumable Purchase Exp. 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd_ Annual Report 201 8-20 1 9  
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34,73,300.50 24,88,948.00 

1 5.492.00 0.00 

32,87. 798.00 20,64, 1 64.00 

7, 79,905.46 2,94, 1 68.78 

1 ' 1 8,029.00 1 ,09,6 1 3.00 

1 1  ,54,881 .00 7,06,275.00 

28,90,006.00 2 1  ,07, 1 75.00 

0.00 0.00 

6,44,34,066.00 4,33,61 ,032.00 

42,49,602 . 70 7 .44, 724.81 

8,04,03,080.66 5,1 8,76, 1 00.59 

60,83.453 . 1 4  26,27 ,330. 94 

1 .60,21 , 1 1 7.99 1 ,06;39,51 6. 1 7 

38,40,302. 1 8  50,38,285.06 

50, 1 7.4 1 5 .84 1 0,69,580.88 

3,09 ,62,289. 1 5  1 ,93,74, 7 1 3.05 

1 ,33,00,91 7.00 1 ,28,50, 1 05.54 

1 ,33,00, 9 1 7.00 1 ,28,50, 1 05.54 

0.00 7,900.00 

82,37,946.00 5,7 6,0 7 1 .00 

24.488.00 0.00 

1 8,35,477.39 0.00 

23,80,826.00 9,36,274.50 

2,70, 1 62.96 1 ' 1 7,409.94 

1 0,48,934.23 6,87,601 .92 

2.42, 1 84.08 3, 75,069.00 

5,30,873.59 5,89,868.40 

2 1 ,60,000.00 0.00 

35,55,246.30 1 7,7 4,066.26 

1 ' 1 2,08,8 1 6.00 1 ' 1 5,50,542.48 

79,44,81 1 .99 0.00 
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Credit Card Charges 39,295.48 1 8, 3 1 6. 1 4  

Directors Sitting Fees 61 ,800.00 69,000.00 

Donation Expenses 69,302.00 56,00 1 .00 

Discount & Rebate 25,690.60 0.00 

ECGC Expenses 1 1 ,73,35 1 .68 6,34,593.00 

Electricity Expenses office 7,34,740. l O  5,68,837.00 

Electrical Fitting Exp. 8,1 7,347.45 66, 1 70.00 

Electrical Tools & Spares 26, 1 1 , 205.44 4,68,392.40 

Electronic Devices Exp. 80,200.00 0.00 

Excise not claimed W/off 0.00 20,02,254.67 

Export Documentation Charges 0.00 1 8,929.00 

Earlier Year Exp. Written Off 1 7,51 ,259.39 0.00 

Furniture Exp. 1 3,89, 1 26.50 0.00 

GST Late Filinq Fees 48,200.00 1 5,400.00 

Hire Charges 4,1 4,386.00 3,56,386. 1 5  

Interest on Listing Fees 22,000.00 

Interest on TDS 2,46,9 1 9.00 2 1 ,985.00 

Interest on Late Payment of ESIC Employer's Contribution 7 , 1 92.00 0.00 

Internet Rental Charges 38,500.00 0.00 

L.C. Discount Charges 0.00 32,387.00 

Listing Fees 5,7 7,600.00 836.00 

License Renewal Fees 7,05,23 1 .95 0.00 

Machinery Spares & Tools 0.00 80,000.00 

Membership & Subscription 59,322.00 2 , 1  0, 1 60.50 

Miscellaneous Expenses 1 ,56,921 .56 85,960. 1 0  

Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund 0.00 1 1 ,549.00 

Management Fees 1 ,000.00 0.00 

Motor Car Expenses 4,47,369.72 2,72,244.39 

Newspaper & Magazines 25,328.00 32,024.00 

Nagar Parishad Palghar 1 3,05,78 1 .00 0.00 

Printing & Stationery Expenses 2 1  ,22, 1 38.50 1 8,93,432.00 

Product Development Charges 55,38,485.64 1 6,97,650.65 

Professional Fees 1 ,53, 7 4,689.60 1 ' 1 4,09,627.00 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 1 ,98,53,648.26 0.00 

ROC Expenses 45,000.00 0.00 

Rates , Taxes And Fees 1 7, 4 1 , 1 36.91 20,00,341 .60 

Rent Expenses 1 ,35,49, 780.00 24, 1 2,900.00 

Security Charges Expenses 2 1  ,89,665.00 1 4,24,644.00 

Sample expenses 0.00 2,06,31 4.00 

Stampduty on Mortgage of Assets 1 4,05,300.00 0.00 

Telephone expenses 9 , 1 5,098.43 1 3,09,446. 1 8  

Travellinq Expenses 52,36,585. 70 30,23,688.53 
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Office Expenses 36,46,764.05 2,21 ,388.50 

Advertisement Expenses ·' 1 , 70,809.00 1 ,89,925.00 

Product Seminar Charges 65,94, 1 34.23 30,02, 784.00 

M R Fees 0.00 1 5,22,279.00 

Insurance Charges 28,5 1 ,972 .50 1 5, 1 1 ,623.00 

Sales Promotion expenses 23,9 1 ,421 .85 0.00 

Sample expenses 200.00 0.00 

Freight Outward expenses 32,58, 751 .63 98,93,607. 95 

Sea Freight 48,51 ,635.32 0.00 

Entertainment Exps 0.00 1 ,07,939.46 

Krishi Kalyan Cess 0.00 34,042.07 

Penalties 1 3,62,353.00 0.00 

Product Registration 6,34,436.49 3,59,220.00 

Swachha Bharat 0.00 34,042.07 

Other Charges 7,235.00 61 , 708.90 

Total 1 4,59,68,077.52 6,39,74,832.76 

Notes:-

il Payment to Auditors 

Audit fees 2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00 

Taxation matters 1 ,50,000.00 1 ,50,000.00 

Other matters 1 ,50,000.00 1 ,50,000.00 

Certification Charges 2,00,000.00 2;00,000.00 

Total 7,50,000.00 7,50,000.00 

Note - 33 

Earnings per Equity Share 

Calculation of weighted average number of Equity Shares 

Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of year 23,52,400.00 

34,25, 1 35.00 

Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 39,89,635.00 34,25, 1 34.00 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 28,84,729.00 

durinq the year 38,48,51 0.00 

Earnings per Equity Share of continuing operations (of Rs. 
1 0/- each) 

Profit after tax of continuing operations 4,46,00,458.63 1 , 75,09,378.92 

Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 1 1 .59 6.07 
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Balancesheel for the year ended 3 1 /03/201 9  

Note - 34 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

The following table shows the carr,;ng amounts and fair values of finacial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value 
hierarchy. It does not include fair value Information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carr,;ng amount is a reasonable 
approximation of fair value 

31 March, 2019 
Carrying Value Fair Value 

FVTPL FVTOCt mortised Cost Total Level l Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financla Assets 

Security eposits - " 56,37,926.46 " " " " 

lnvestme ts 30,000.00 " 30,000.00 " " 30,000.00 
Trade and other 

1 7,78,20,947.49 
Receivable 

" " " " " " 

Cash and cash 
1 ,46,67,265.21 

equivalents 
" " " " " " 

Other bahk balanc - " " 
" 

Loans " 1 2,84,876.41 " " 

Other fln�ncial ass " 4,01,873.34 " " 
" 

" 

Fiancial ibilities - " " " -

Lana fer s loans " " 16,1 7,43, 1 74 . 13  " - " " 

Short fer s loans " " 9,69,46,489.87 " " 

Trade and other 
33,70,44,204.98 

pyables 
- " " 

31 March, 2018 
Carrying Value Fair Value 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level l Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 

Security cfeposits 35,22,792.00 

Trade and other 
1 5,25,92,438.22 

Receivable 
Cash and cash 

1 ,45,32,880.87 
equivalents 

Flancial ibilities 

Lana ter s loans 2,73,64,240.33 

Short ter s loans 7,24,93,363.61 

Trade and other 
38,92,08,981 .63 

pyables 

Note · 35 

Financial instruments • Risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

company's primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effect of market risk on its financial 

performance. The Comapany's risk management assessment policies and process are established to identity and analyze 

the risk faced by the comapny, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the 

same. Risk assessment and management policies and process are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 

conditions and the comapany's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the 

company's risk assessment and management policies and processes 
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Financial risk management 

The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial Instruments 

1 Credit risk 
2 liquidily risk and 
3 Market risk 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company If a customer or counter party to a financial instrument falls to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises prlclpally from the company's receivables trom customers. Credit risk Is 
managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continously monitoring the creditworthiness of 
customers to which the company grants credit terms in normal course of business. The company establishes an 
allowance for doubtful debts and Impairment thats represents its estimate of incurred losses In respect of trade and 
other receivables and Investments 

Trade and other receivable 

The company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charracterlstlc of each customer. The 
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country In which the customer 
operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk Is managed through credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company 
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows 
(before allowance for the doubtful debts) :-

Particulars 

Neither past due nor Impaired 
Past due but not impaired 

Past due 1 - 90 days 
Past due 91 - 1 80 days 
Past due 1 81 - 270 days 
Past due 271 - 360 days 
Past due more than 360 days 

Expected credit loss assessment 

As at 31 March, 201 9  

5,82,35, 1 5 1 .57 
6, 70,45,255.63 

4,58,1 54.40 
2,90,24,342.58 
2,30,58,043.31 

1 7.78,20,947.49 

As at 31 March, 201 8  

1 0, 1 2,35,809.22 
56,50,000. 99 

1 ,45,88,481 .93 
98,508.57 

3 , 10 , 19,637.51 
1 5,25,92,438.22 

Exposure to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the company to 
determine and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment ot trade receivables do not reflect any 
significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of the company have not 
undergone any substantial change, the company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. 
Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still 
collectible In full, based on historical payment behaviour and extension analysis of customer credit risk. The 
impairment loss at 3 1  March, 201 9  related to several customers that have defaulted on their payments to the 
comapny and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic 
circustances. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company held cash and cash eqivalents and other bank balances with credit worthy banks and financial 
Institutions of Rs. 1 ,46,67,264.81/- (31 March, 201 8  Rs. 1 ,45,32,880.88/-). The credit worthiness of such banks and 
financial Institutions is evaluted by the management on an ongoing basis and Is considered to be good. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidily risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 
company manages its llquldily risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidily to meet 
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to 
the Company's reputation. 

AS on 3 1  March, 201 9  the Company has working capital of Rs. 34,34,32,345.57/- (As on 31 March, 201 8  Rs. 
8,33,82,986.22/-1 including cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of Rs. 1 ,46,67,264.81/- (31 
March, 201 8  Rs. 1 ,45,32,880.88/-). Working capital is calculated as current assets less current liabilities. 95 
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Note - 36 

Financial instruments - Risk management 

i. Exposure to liquidity risk 

The table below analyses the Companys tinanciol llabllities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for: 

Contractual cash flows 

Particulars 
Carrying Amount Total 

As at 31 March, 2019 

Non · Derivative financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 33,70,44,204.98 33,70,44,204.98 

1\s at 31 March, 2018 

Non • Derivative financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 38,92,08,981 .63 38,92,08,981 .63 

i i  Market risk 

1 year or less 

33,70,44,204.98 

38,92,08,981.63 

1 - 2 years 2 • 5 years 
More than 
5 years 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes In market 
rates and prices (such as Interest rates, foreign currency exchanges rates) or in the prices of market risk - sensitive 
instruments as as result of such adverse changes In market rates and prices. Market risk Is attributable to all market risk -
sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long - term debt. The 
Comapny is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of 
its investments. Thus, the Comapnys exposure to market risk is a function of Investing and borrowing activities and revenue 
generating and operating activities In foreign currencies. 

A Currency risk 

The fluctuations In foreign currency exchanges rates may have potential impact on the profit and loss account. where any 
transaction references more han one currency or where assets/laibilities are denominated in a currency other than the 
functional currency of the entity 

Considering the countries and economic environment In which the company operates, its operations are subject to risks 
arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in USD gainst the 
respective functional currency of the company. 

The company does not use any financial assets and financial liabilities in respect of major currencies in as follows: 

B Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. 

Interest rate sensitivity • fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed - rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
and loss, and the Company does not have any designated derivates. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the 
reporting date would not affect profit and loss for any of these fixed interest bearing financial instruments 
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�-;--:;---;-c-o-o--- - -
Noles to financic:tl statements for the year E!nded 31/03/2019 
Note - 37 
Related party relationships, transaction and balan�c�e�s ________ _ 

The table provides the information about the Group's structure including Key Management Personnel and 
Business Organisation controlled by Key Management Personnel or their relatives. The following table provides the 
total amount of transaction that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year 

A. gE!Iale_c:l parties and nature of_relationship where control exist (upto 31  March, 2019) 
Key Management Personnel : 

i) Mr. Nariman B.Medhora 
ii) Mrs. Dr. Daulat N.Medhora 

,----�iii)Jv1_r, Fredun N. Medhora 

B.  Business C>!ganisation controlled by_l<ey Management Personnel or lhe=-i�r�re�l�a�tiv�e�s�:�------ _ 3  
i) Fredna Enterprise 
ii) Fredun Healthcare Pvt. Ltd. 

Details of transactions entered into with ltiE! related parties for the relevant financial year 

Transaction Key Managerial 
Personnel Fredna Enterprise 

Qif.e.ctor Remuneration for the ye()r
:-------:c-c-:-:-c---t--4�9-",2=0,000.00 

Purchase Made from Fredun Healthcare Pvt Ltd. 
Rent paid to Mr Nariman B. Medhora for utilising a 

Fredun 
Healthcare Pvt. 

Ltd 

31  ,20,84, 7 33.02_ 

d ff. . t f' 1 ' 1 5,20,000.00 go own o tee proprre ory�t�rm�c---:--- ------+-------f------c==��----------1 
Purchase Made from Fredna'-'e="n_..t"e'trp_,ri'"'se""s'------- 97,500.00 

Note - 38 
Segment reporting 
1. The Company is operating in only one segment i.e. Pharmaceutical Formulations. In respect of secondary 
segment ie - Geographical segment information, the company has identified its geographical segments as i) 
[)e>,lllestic and li) Exports 
Particulars 31  March, 201 9 31  March, 201 8  

Domestic -�"xp�o""'rt"=cc-cc+��D�o.,m-;e-:-sc-lic��t-cc=--=-=:Ex,.,p"'=o"'rt'=CCC'oci 
Revenue from ope'-Cra:"-t"'io_,_,n'-s ---+-cc-54"''"'65�"·cc-83�,cc-84-c60'.cc-83:+-c

4C":0'-'.7o-04'C:,8C":8'C:,5C:09cc-3c.;.4-:-;8 34,29,1 2,563.66 23,7 7,60,080.09 
rota 1 54, 65, 8 3, 846 . 83 40.7 4 ·:--8 8,-.. 5�9.__3":'. 4":8'j_3":4C", 2�9"-. 1._.2"'. 5C'6"'3"". 6..,.6 _!_ 2"'3'-':. 7._.7_.,, 6,--o .... 0"8""0"'. O:'_j9 

I. The Company is operating in only one segment i.e. Pharmaceutical Formulations. In respect of secondary 
segment ie - Geographical segment information, the company has identified its geographical segments as i) 
Domestic and ii) Imports 
Particulars 

Purchase 
Total 

- . 

__ ,,.,_,,_ 
31  March, 201 9 

Domestic Imports 
80,31 ,03, 1 05.69 1 ,92,06,298.00 
80,31 ,03,1 05.69 1 ,92,06,298.00 

--
31  March, 201 8  

Domestic Imports 
46,99,65, 1 87 .77 4,00,26,595.36 
46,99,65, 1 87.77 4,00,26,595.36 
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Note - 37 

In March 20 1 8, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs Issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 201 8, notifying lnd AS 1 1 5  'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (New Revenue Standard) w.e.f. 
accounting periods commencing on or after April 01 , 201 8, which replaces lnd AS 1 1  'Construction Contracts' 
and lnd AS 1 8  'Revenue'. The New Revenue Standard establishes principles for recognising revenue upon the 
transfer of promised goods or services to customers, In an amount that reAects the expected consideration 
received in exchange For those goods or services. The New Revenue Standard provides additional guidance on 
areas such as multiple element arrangements, measurement approaches for variable consideration, specific 
guidance for licensing ofintel!ectual property along with significant additional dlsdosures in relation to revenue. 
The New Revenue Standard also provides two broad alternative transition options- Retrospective Method and 
Cumulative Effect Method - with certain practical expedients available under the Retrospective Method. The 
Company continues to evaluate the Impact of the New Revenue Standard on the present and future 
arrangements and shall determine the appropriate transition option once the said evaluation has been 
completed. 

Note - 39 

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial 
statements as on the balance sheet date. 

Note - 40 
Figures For the previous year have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform current year's 
dassiftcation. 

Note - 41 
Dues to micro and small enterprise 
Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Act. 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from October 2, 2006 

certain disclores are required to be made relating to with Micro Small and Medicum enterprises. On the basis of 
the information and records available with the Management the company is in process to comply the list of its 
sundry creditors who satisfy this criterion of said act. 
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Category 
A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
G -ANALGESICS I NSAID 
W - PROSTATIC HYPERPLASIA (BPH)IALPHA 

BLOCKERS 

FR UR PR 
1 -

1 -

1 -

TOTAL - 3 -

Category -
FR UR PR 

B - ANTI-MALARIAL 2 -

TOTAL - 2 -

Category 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

FR UR PR 
1 

TOTAL -
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Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
D - ANTHELMINTIC 
E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
I - ANTICOAGULANTS 
N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 
R - LAXATIVE 
S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 

MULTMTAMINS AND MULTIMINERALS 
V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 

FR UR PR 
6 6 -

- 4 -

- 1 -
3 1 -
4 3 -
2 5 -
- 1 -

1 
- 3 -
- 1 -
2 - -
- 1 -

- 1 -
Z - ANGIOTENSIN-CONVERTING ENZVME 6 

(ACE) TOTAL 1 7 28 6 

Category FR UR PR 
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 
MULTIVITAMINS AND MULTI MINERALS 

Category 

B - ANTI-MALARIAL 
E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 
S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 

TOTAL 

FR UR PR 
- 2 -

- 1 -
- 2 -

TOTAL - 5 -

1 00 
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Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
B - ANTI-MALARIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
D - ANTHELMINTIC 
E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
H - ANTIFUNGAL 
J - ANTI INFLAMATORY 
I< - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 
M - ANTI-RETROVIRAL I ANTI HIV 
N - ANTICONVULSANT$ I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 
S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 
T - ANTI OBESITY 
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 

MULTIVITAMINS AND MULTIMINERALS 
V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 

FR UR PR 
9 6 -

6 -
- 1 2 
2 1 
1 1 -
6 6 -
5 6 -

5 -2 
4 6 2 
2 33 3 

1 -
1 2 
5 -

2 
2 -

2 -
3 -

X - PSYCHOTROPIC$ I ANTI - PSYCHOTICS _1:_ __ 

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 

TOTAL 35 96 9 

FR UR PR 
- 1 -

TOTAL - 1 -

FR UR PR 
- 1 -

- 3 -

- 2 -

TOTAL - 6 -

1 0 1  
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Category 

C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

FR UR PR 
- 3 -

- l -

TOTAL - 4 -

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
B - ANTI-MALARIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
D - ANTHELMINTIC 
E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
H - ANTIFUNGAL 
K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 
L - ANTIVIRAL 
N - ANTICONVULSANT$ I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
P - DIURETIC 
R - LAXATIVE 
S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 

MULTMTAMINS AND MULTI MINERALS 

FR UR PR 
- 5 -

- 2 -

- 2 -

- l -

- 3 -

- 3 -

- 2 -

- l -

- l -

- l -

l 

- l -

- l -

2 2 -

l -

TOTAL 3 26 -

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
I - ANTICOAGULANTS 
J - ANTI INFLAMATORY 
K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 
L - ANTIVIRAL 
M - ANTI-RETROVIRAL I ANTI HIV 
N - ANTICONVULSANT$ I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
P - DIURETIC 
Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 

MULTIVITAMINS AND MULTIMINERALS 
V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 
X - PSYCHOTROPICS I ANTI - PSYCHOTICS 
Y - NEPHROLOGY 

FR UR PR 
2 4 l 

5 l 0 7 

4 

3 

- 4 -

- 6 -

l 
7 6 

2 -
- l 

3 4 -

- l 
- l 
l 30 

- 6 -

TOTAL 27 45 42 
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Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
H - ANTIFUNGAL 
I - ANTICOAGULANTS 

I 
K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 
N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 

FR UR PR 
1 -

2 -

1 -

1 -

1 -

1 -

2 -

5 -
1 -

TOTAL 2 1 5  -

Category FR UR PR 
A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 8 1 7  3 

B - ANTI-MALARIAL 5 1 9  2 

C - ANTI-DIABETIC 1 0  l l  7 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 1 

E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 3 1 -
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 4 8 -
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 2 1 4  -
H - ANTIFUNGAL 2 -
I - ANTICOAGULANTS 
J - ANTI INFLAMATORV 4 -
K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 9 9 2 

N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 1 

P - DIURETIC 1 

Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 3 

S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 2 2 -
U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTIVITAMINS/ 

MULTMTAMINS AND MULTIMINERALS 2 5 -
V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 2 -

TOTAL 54 94 1 5 

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 
C - ANTI-DIABETIC 
D - ANTHELMINTIC 
F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 
G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
H - ANTIFUNGAL 
I - ANTICOAGULANTS 
K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 
N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 
P - DIURETIC 
Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 

FR UR PR 
3 5 -

- 3 3 

2 

l -

- 2 -

- 1 1 
- 2 1 

- 1 

- 1 

TOTAL 5 1 8  7 
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• FR - Final Reglstrallan 

• UR - Under Registration 

• PR - Projected Reglstralian 

A C D E F G H J K N Q R S T U V W 

Therapeutic Categories 

SRI LANKA 

• FR - Final Reglstrallan 

• UR - Under ReglstraHan 

• PR - Projected Registraftan 

A D G H K v 
Therapeutic Categories 

TAJIKISTAN 

• FR - Final ReglstraHon 

• UR - Under Registration 

• PR - Projected Reglslratlon 

c D K 0 

Therapeutic Categories 

TANZANIA 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Annual Report 201 8-2019 

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 

C - ANTI-DIABETIC 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 

E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 

H - ANTIFUNGAL 

J - ANTI INFLAMATORY 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 

Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 

R - LAXATIVE 

S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 

T - ANTI OBESITY 

U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTIVITAMINS/ 

MULTMTAMINS AND MULTI MINERALS 

V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 

-
FR UR PR 

5 2 l 

4 - l 
l 
2 
5 

1 

5 

5 - 2 
- 2 

3 - -
1 
1 

- l 

W - PROSTATIC HYPERPLASIA (BPH)IALPHA 

BLOCKERS - 2 -

TOTAL 37 5 7 

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 

H - ANTIFUNGAL 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 

-
FR UR PR 

5 

- 1 -

2 

- 1 -
- 2 -

l -

TOTAL 4 1 2  -

Category 

C - ANTI-DIABETIC 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

L - ANTIVIRAL 

0 - ANTIDIARRHOEAL 

-
FR UR PR 

- 1 -

- 1 -

- 1 -

1 
- 1 -
- 1 -

TOTAL - 6 -

1 04 
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• Fll - Final Reglslfollon 

• lJR - Under RegistratiOn 

• PR - Projected Reglslfolfon 

D E F G H J K N U  

Therapeutic Categories 

UGANDA 

• Fll - Final Registration 

• UR - Under Reglslfollon 

• PR - Projected Reglslfotlon 

c 
Therapeutic Categories 

UZBEKISTAN 

• FR - Final Registration 

• Ufl - Under Registration 

• PR - Projected ReglstroHon 

A C D E F G H I J K M N Q S V W 

Therapeutic Categories 

VIETNAM 
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Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 

B - ANTI-MALARIAL 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 

E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 

H - ANTIFUNGAL 

J - ANTI INFLAMATORY 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 

U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTMTAMINSI 

MULTIVITAMINS AND MULTI MINERALS 

-
FR UR PR 
- 1 1  1 

4 -

1 -

1 -

1 8 -

5 6 -

2 -

4 -

2 -

2 -

1 -

TOTAL 6 42 

Category 
-
FR UR PR 

M - ANTI-RETROVIRAL I ANTI HIV 8 

TOTAL - 8 -

Category 

A - ANTI-BACTERIAL 

C - ANTI-DIABETIC 

D - ANTHELMINTIC 

E - ANTIHISTAMINES I ANTIALLERGIC 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

G - ANALGESICS I NSAID 
H - ANTIFUNGAL 

I - ANTICOAGULANTS 

J - ANTI INFLAMATORY 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

M - ANTI-RETROVIRAL I ANTI HIV 

N - ANTICONVULSANTS I ANTI-EPILEPTIC 

Q - CARDIOVASCULAR 

S - IMPOTENCE DRUGS 

V - BONE MODULATING DRUGS 

W - PROSTATIC HYPERPLASIA (BPH)IALPHA 

BLOCKERS 

-
FR UR PR 

1 2 3 

- 2 . 3 

- - 1 

1 2 

- 4 9 

- 2 

- 1 

- 1 

- 3 5 

6 

- 1 4 

- 2 2 

- 4 -

- 1 

- 1 

- - 1 

TOTAL 2 24 39 
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• FR - Final Reglslratlon 

• UR - Under Reglslrallan 

• PR - Projected Reglslrallan 

K 

Therapeutic Categories 

u 

ZAMBIA 
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Category 

F - ANTACID I ANTIULCER I ANTI-EMETIC 

K - ANTIHYPERTENSIVES 

U - APPETITE STIMULANT WITH MULTIVITAMINS/ 

MULTIVITAMINS AND MULTI MINERALS 

-
FR UR PR 

3 

5 -

TOTAL - 9 

COUNTRY WISE PRODUCT REGISTRATIONS • FR - Final Registration 

110 

100 

90 

40 

30 

20 

10 

A.zerbollon Bhutan Costortca Kenyo 

Myanmar 

Lebanon Mozombtque Nicaragua 

NOTE: FR/UR Registration includes New Registration and Renewals. 

• UR - Under Registration 

• PR - Projected Registration 

Tonzonta Uzbekistan Zambia 

To)lkhton Ugondo Vletnom 
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No. or yea:� 

CAPSULES 

___ f:,crec::::'un Phanrace<.Jiicals l!d J\nnual Reporl 2018·2019 

Granulation Capacity per day (In kgs) 

Years 

2014 
2015 
2016 
201 7 
2018 

Capacity (In kgs) 

3750 
5000 

6000 
9(XX) 

9800 

Compression Capacity per day (in Millions) 

Years 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Capacity (in millions) 
6 
8 

19 
22 
23 

Coating Capacity per day (in Millions) 

Years Capacity (in millions) 
2014 4.5 
2015 6.0 
2016 8.5 
2017 10 
2018 25 

Capsules Capacity per day (in Millions) 

Years 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Capacity (In millions) 
1 .5 
1 .8 
2.5 
3.5 
3.8 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 
CIN: L24239MH1 987PLC043662 

Registered Office: 
26 Mana] Industrial Premises, 
G D Ambel<.ar Marg, Wadala, 
Mumbai-400 031 Mahorashtra 
Phone:022-403 1 8 1 1  
Email: buslness@fredungrQl!.P--COm 
Website: www.fredungroup.com 

MGT- 1 1  

PROXY FORM 
[Pu(s-'J;.m,' .•o Sec/.lon 1·05(6) of the Corn.nn.n,'0s Act, 20·13 Cn'd Rli,'e 19{3} of 

'''� CG\'l'f)On(es {l'l!onnoernent nno' Adminlsirotiora} J'?L','e� 20141 

PROXY FORM 

32nd Annual General Meeting, Tuesday, Septetnber 24, 2019 at 09:00 A.M. 

Name of Shareholder I Proxyholder I 
Authorized Reptesental·ive 

Registered Address 

E-maii iD 

DP ID & Client ID I Registered Folio 

I I  We, being the shcireholder(s) of _______ .shares of the above-named Company, 

hereby appoint: 

1 ' Nome 
Address 

E-maii iD 

Signature 

Or failing him; 

2 .. Name 
Address 

E-mai! ID 

Signature 

Or foiling him: 
108 



F1edun Pl'ICn noccuticols Ltd. Annual Report 201 B-201 9 

3. Name 
Address 

E-maii iD 

Signa1Lre 

as my I our proxy to altend and vote [on a poll) for me I us and on my I our behalf at the 

32nd Annual General Meeting ot the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 24, 

2019 at 09:00 A.M. at Ramee Guest Line. Hotel - Dadar Plot No.3, Kohlnoor Road, Dodor 

Mumbai - 400 014 and at any adj0umrnen1 thereof In respect of such resolutions as are 

Indicated below: 

Sr. No. Resolution 

1 . To receive. consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 

�. the Financial Year ended March 31,  2019. 

I 
To declae o Dividend of 6.5% on Equity Shares of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended March 31. 2019. 

3. To appoint o Director In place of Mr. Narlman Medhora (DIN No.:02060357) who retires 

by rotation In te1ms of Secffon 152 of Companies Act 2013 and being eligible has 

offered himself for re·appolnlmen1. 

�· To Ratify the rernuneralion of the Cost Auditor. 

Signed this ___ _ 

Signature of Shareholder: 

Signature of Proxy Holder: 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp oi' 

Rs. II-

Note: Tills form of proxy In order to be effecftvo should be duly completed and Cleposllod at the l�egistered 
Olflco of the Company. not los s than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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ATIENDANCE 
SLIP 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 

Registered Office: 
26 IVlanoj Industrial Premises, 
G D Ambekor Marg, Wadala, 
fvlumbai-400 031 Maharashtra 
Phone:022-40318ll  
Email: business@fredungroup.com 
Website: www.fredungroup.com 

CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662 

AITENDANCE SLIP 

32nd .Annual General Meeting, Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 09:00A.M. 

DP ID & Client ID I Registered Folio 

Name of Shareholder 1 Proxyhold. er 

1 Authorized Representative 

Name of Joint lv1ennber[s), If any 

No. of Shares held 

I certify that I am a registered shareholder I proxy for the registered Shareholder of the 
Company and hereby record my presence at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company on Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 09:00 A.l'v). at Ramee Guest Line, Hotel -

Dadar Plot No.3, Kohinoor Road, Dadar Mumbal-400 0 1 4  

Note: 

--, .. - - - - . Member's I Pl'oxy's Si?,uuture 

1 . Please sign this attendance slip and hancl it over at the Attendonce Verification Counter at· 
the MEETING VENUE. 

2. Only shareholders of the Company and/or their Proxy will be allowed to aHend the 
Meeting. 

3. Thee-voting facili1y Is available at the link www,evoting.n�dl.comThe electronic voting 

particulars are set out as follows: 

EVSN USER ID PASSWORD/PIN 
!Remote E-Vo11nQ Event Numberl 

1 1 1 2 1 4  

1 1 0  
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LTD 

Registered Office: 
26 Manoj lndus!rlal Premises, 
G D Ambekar Marg, Wadala, 
Mumboi-400 031 Mol\arastwa 
Pl1one:022-4031811 

Email: "u�it:�ess@freQ.ungroup_com 
Website: www.lredungroup_com 

Dear Shareholders, 

CIN: L24239MH1987PLC043662. 

EMAIL UPDATION LEnEI? 

June 10, 2019 

Tile Company is In the process of updating its records of the shmeholders In order to reduce the physico! 
documentation os for as posslblo. 

1/v'ith new BSE Listing Regulo1ions, it Is mandatory for all the investors including tcansferors to complete their KYC 
information. Hence, we Intend to update vour PAN No., Phone No. & E-mail ld In our records. We would also like to 
update your current signatur0 records in our system. 

In reference to the SEBI circular dated. August 10, 2018 and further circular dated Decemper 3, 2018; SE81 
notified the amended LODR r:eg�Jiallons stating that except in the case of transmission or transposition of 

securities. requests for tile transfer of stock shall not be p'rOcessed unless the securities are held in tt\e 
demoteriolised form with a Depository. Thus, we reque�i our respected sllarehotders to take note of the some &. 
demciterlise there shares. 

To achieve i11ts, we soliCit your co-operation in providing the following det ails to us: 

1 . If you are 11otdtng the shores in Dematerialized form. you may update all your records wijh your Depository 
Pcrticiponl (DP). 

2. If you ore. holding s11ares in physical form, you may provide the fol1owing: 

Folio No.: 

Pan No. 

E-molltD 

Telephone No. 

Nome & Signature 

Thanking You. 

I. 

it. 

iii. 

For Fredun Pharniaceullcals Limited 

Pfiyanka Chaturvedl 

Company Secretary Cum Compliance Oflicer 

1 1 1  
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If undelivered please return to: 
FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Manoj lndvstrlal Premises, G.D. Arnbekar Marg, 
Wadala, Mumbai - 400 031. (INDIA) 

business@fredungroup.com 
www.fredungroup.com 


